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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLKATA BENCH

Company Application No.160 of 2017

In the matter of:
The Companies Act, 2013
And
In the matter of Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
And
In the Matter of:

Orient Paper & Industries Limited, having CIN L210110R1936PLC000117,
a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1913,
having its registered office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar,
Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha

And

Orient Electric Limited, having CIN U311000R2016PLC025892, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, having its
registered office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar 751012,
Odisha.

..... Applicants.

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENT PAPER & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

To
The Equity Shareholders of Orient Paper & Industries Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that by an order made on the 18th day of May 2017 in the abovementioned Company Application, the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at Kolkata (“NCLT”) has directed separate meetings to be held of the equity
shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of Orient Paper & Industries Limited, being the Applicant Company no.1
abovenamed (hereinafter referred to as the “Demerged Company”) and equity shareholders and unsecured creditors of Orient
Electric Limited, being the Applicant Company no. 2 abovenamed (hereinafter referred to as the “Resulting Company”) for the
purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification, the arrangement proposed to be made between
the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that meeting of the equity shareholders of
the Demerged Company will be held at Unit VIII, Plot No 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneshwar 751012, Odisha, India on Thursday, the
29th day of June 2017 at 10 A.M. at which place, day, date and time the said equity shareholders of the Demerged Company are
requested to attend.

At the said meeting, the following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be approved with the requisite majority:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 and 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the rules, circulars and notifications made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) as may
be applicable, the Securities and Exchange Board oflndia Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated 30 November 2015, the
observation letters issued by each of the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, both dated 15 March
2017 and subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval
of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”) and subject to such other approvals, permissions and
sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions,
which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be
deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which the Board
may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme
of Arrangement between Orient Paper & Industries Limited and Orient Electric Limited and their respective shareholders and



creditors (“Scheme”) placed before this meeting and initialled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification, be
and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it
may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively
implement the arrangement embodied in the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions,
if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in the Scheme or by any
authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise
including passing of such accounting entries and /or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in

>

giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.’

Persons entitled to attend and vote at the said meeting may vote in person or by proxy, provided that all proxies in the prescribed
form, duly signed by you or your authorised representative, are deposited at the registered office of the Demerged Company at
Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India not later than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the time fixed
for the said meeting.

Forms of Proxy can be obtained from the registered office of the Demerged Company.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230(4) read with Sections 108 and 110 of the
Companies Act, 2013; (ii) Rule 6(3)(xi) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (iii)
Rule 22 read with Rule 20 and other applicable provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as
amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2016, respectively; and (iv) Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Demerged
Company has provided the facility of voting by postal ballot and e-voting so as to enable the equity shareholders, to consider and
approve the Scheme by way of the aforesaid resolution. Accordingly, you may cast your vote either through postal ballot or through
e-voting.

It is clarified that casting of votes by postal ballot or remote e-voting does not disentitle an equity shareholder from attending the
Meeting. It is further clarified that the Proxies can only vote on Poll at the meeting and not through any other mode.

Copies of the Scheme and the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the enclosures as
indicated in the aforesaid Index, can be obtained free of charge at the respective registered offices of the Applicants at Unit — VIII,
Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India or at the office of its advocates, M/s. Khaitan & Co, Emerald House,
1B, Old Post Office Street, Kolkata 700 001, India.

NCLT has appointed Ms. Anima Maiti to be the Chairperson of the said meeting, including for any adjournment or adjournments
thereof.

The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of NCLT.

A copy of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the Scheme and the other enclosures as
indicated in the aforesaid Index are enclosed.

Sd/- Anima Maiti
Dated this 24th day of May 2017 Chairperson appointed for the meeting

Notes:

1. Only registered equity shareholders of the Demerged Company and corporate/FII which is a registered equity shareholder
of the Demerged Company may attend and vote at the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company
provided a copy of the resolution of the board of directors or other governing body of the body corporate/FII authorising
such representative to attend and vote at the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company, duly certified to
be a true copy by a director, the manager, the secretary or other authorised officer of such body corporate/FII, is deposited
at the registered office of the Demerged Company not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company.

As per Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, a person can act as proxy on behalf of not
more than 50 (fifty) equity shareholders holding in aggregate, not more than 10% (ten percent) of the total share capital of
the Demerged Company carrying voting rights. Equity shareholders holding more than 10% (ten percent) of the total share
capital of the Demerged Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act
as proxy for any other person or equity sharcholder.
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The form of proxy can be obtained free of charge from the registered office of the Demerged Company.
All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

During the period beginning 24 (twenty-four) hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending
with the conclusion of the meeting, an equity shareholder would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during
the business hours of the Demerged Company, provided that not less than 3 (three) days of notice in writing is given to the
Demerged Company.

The quorum of the said meeting shall be 30 (thirty) members present in person.

A registered equity shareholder of the Demerged Company or his proxy, attending the meeting, is requested to bring the
Attendance Slip duly completed and signed.

The registered equity shareholder of the Demerged Company who hold shares in dematerialized form and who are attending
the meeting are requested to bring their DP ID and Client ID for easy identification.

The registered equity shareholders of the Demerged Company are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting,
only such joint holder whose name stands first in the register of members of the Demerged Company / list of beneficial owners
as received from National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”)/ Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”)
in respect of such joint holding, will be entitled to vote.

The documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection by the equity shareholders
of the Demerged Company at the registered office of the Demerged Company between 10.00 A.M. and 12.00 noon on all days
(except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) upto the date of the meeting.

NCLT, by its said Order, has, interalia, directed that meeting of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company shall be
convened and held at the registered office of the Demerged Company on Thursday, the 29th day of June 2017 for the purpose
of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme.
Equity shareholders of the Demerged Company would be entitled to vote in the said meeting either in person or through
proxy.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if a
majority in number representing three fourth in value of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company, voting in person
or by proxy or by postal ballot and e-voting, agree to the Scheme.

The Demerged Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited(“NSDL”) for facilitating
e-voting for the said meeting to be held on 29th June 2017. Equity shareholders desiring to exercise their vote by using
e-voting facility are requested to follow the instructions mentioned in Note 29 below.

The Notice together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent to all the equity shareholders either by
registered post or speed post/ airmail or by courier service or electronically by e-mail to those equity shareholders who have
registered their e-mail ids with the Demerged Company/registrar and share transfer agents/ NSDL/CDSL, whose names
appear in the register of members/list of beneficial owners as received from NSDL/CDSL as on 19th May 2017. The Notice
will be displayed on the website of the Demerged Company at www.orientpaperindia.com and on the website of NSDL at
www.evoting.nsdl.com

The notice convening the meeting, the date of dispatch of the notice and the Explanatory Statement along with the postal
ballot papers, amongst others, will be published through advertisement in the following newspapers, namely, (i) Business
Standard in the English language; and (ii) translation thereof in Orissa Bhaskar (Odisha Edition) in the Oriya language.

Mr.Pawan Kumar Sarawagi, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS-3381/CP-4882) has been appointed as the scrutinizer to
conduct the postal ballot and e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

In compliance with the provisions as stated hereinabove, the Demerged Company is pleased to offer postal ballot and e-voting
facility to its equity shareholders holding equity shares as on19th May 2017, being the cut-off date, to exercise their right to
vote on the above resolution. A person, whose name is not recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial
owners maintained by NSDL/CDSL as on the cut-off date i.e. 19th May 2017 shall not be entitled to avail the facility of
e-voting or voting through postal ballot or voting at the meeting to be held on 29th June 2017. Voting rights shall be reckoned
on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the names of the members as on the 19th day of May 2017.

The equity shareholders have the option either to vote through e-voting process or through the postal ballot form.

A postal ballot form along with self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope is also enclosed. Equity sharcholders voting in
physical form are requested to carefully read the instructions printed in the attached postal ballot form. Equity shareholders
who have received the postal ballot notice by e-mail and who wish to vote through postal ballot form, can download the postal
ballot form from the Demerged Company’s website at www.orientpaperindia.com or seek duplicate postal ballot form from
the Demerged Company.
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Equity shareholders of the Demerged Company shall fill in the requisite details and send the duly completed and signed postal
ballot form in the enclosed self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope to the scrutinizer so as to reach the scrutinizer on or
before 5.00 p.m. on or before 28th day of June 2017. Postal ballot form, if sent by courier or by registered post/speed post at
the expense of an equity shareholder will also be accepted. Any postal ballot form received after the said date and time period
shall be treated as if the reply from the member has not been received.

Incomplete, unsigned, improperly or incorrectly tick marked postal ballot forms will be rejected.
The vote on postal ballot cannot be exercised through proxy.
There will be only 1 (one) postal ballot form for every registered folio/client ID irrespective of the number of joint members.

The postal ballot form should be completed and signed by the equity shareholders (as per specimen signature registered with
the Demerged Company and/or furnished by the Depositories). In case, shares are jointly held, this form should be completed
and signed by the first named member and, in his/her absence, by the next named member. Holder(s) of Power of Attorney
(“PoA”) on behalf of an equity shareholder may vote on the postal ballot mentioning the registration number of the PoA
with the Demerged Company or enclosing a copy of the PoA authenticated by a notary. In case of shares held by companies,
societies etc., the duly completed postal ballot form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the board resolution/
authorisation giving the requisite authority to the person voting on the postal ballot form.

The scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the meeting after completion of the scrutiny of the postal ballots
including e-votes submitted/cast by the equity shareholders. The scrutinizer will also submit his report to the Chairman of
the Demerged Company or to the person so authorised by the Chairman of the meeting after completion of the scrutiny of
the postal ballots including e-votes submitted/cast by the equity shareholders. The scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the
vote (including e-votes) shall be final. The results, together with the scrutinizer’s Reports, will be displayed at the registered
office of the Demerged Company, on the website of the Demerged Companyat www.orientpaperindia.com and on the website
of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com, besides being communicated to BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

Kindly note that the equity shareholders can opt only one mode for voting i.e. either by physical postal ballot or e-voting. If
an equity shareholder has opted for e-voting, then he/she should not vote by physical postal ballot form also and vice versa.
However, in case equity shareholder(s) cast their vote both via physical postal ballot and e-voting, then voting validly done
through e-voting shall prevail and voting done by physical postal ballot shall be treated as invalid.

The equity shareholders of the Demerged Company attending the meeting who have not cast their vote either through postal
ballot or e-voting shall be entitled to exercise their vote at the venue of the meeting. Equity shareholders who have cast their
votes through postal ballot or e-voting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The voting including e-voting period will commence at 9.00 A.M. on Tuesday, the 30th day of May 2017 and will end at
5.00 p.m. on Wednesday, the 28th day of June 2017. During this period, the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date, i.e. 19th day of May 2017 may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting on 28th June 2017 at 5.00 p.m. Once the
vote on the resolution is cast by an equity shareholder, he or she will not be allowed to change it subsequently.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and remote e-voting user
manual for shareholders available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com

Voting through Electronic Means

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules 2014 and Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Demerged Company is pleased to provide its equity
shareholders facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting
services provided by NSDL. The procedure and instructions for equity shareholders for voting electronically are as under:

A. In case a Member receives an e-mail from NSDL:
(1) Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

(i) Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and Password mentioned above). However, if you are already registered
with NSDL for e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting your vote.

(ii1) After entering these details appropriately, Click on “LOGIN”.
(iv) You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your password. The
new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters/digits or combination thereof. It is strongly recommended

that you do not share your password with any other person and that you take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.



(v) You need to login again with the new credentials.

(vi) On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVEN” i.e. ‘Company Name” i.e. Orient Paper &
Industries Limited.

(vii) Now you are ready for e-Voting as Cast Vote page opens.

(viii) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
(ix) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote Cast successfully” will be displayed.

(x) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xi) Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are also required to send scanned
certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter, etc. together with attested specimen
signature(s) of the duly authorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID: pawan@sarawagi.in with a
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice
(1) Initial Password is provided, at the bottom of the Postal Ballot Form sent alongwith Notice of the Meeting.
(ii) Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (i) to St. No. (xi) above in (A), to cast your vote.

C. Other Instructions:

(i) A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting
as well as voting at the Meeting.

(i) The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date i.e. 19th May 2017.

Encl.: As above



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL

KOLKATA BENCH

Company Application No.160 of 2017

In the matter of:

The Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the matter of Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the Matter of:

Orient Paper & Industries Limited, having CIN L210110R1936PLC000117,
a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1913, having its registered office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar,
Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha

And
Orient Electric Limited, having CIN U311000R2016PLC025892, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, having
its registered office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar —
751012, Odisha.

..... Applicants.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230(3), 232(1) AND (2) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

1.

Pursuant to an order dated 18th day of May 2017 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench, at Kolkata
(the “NCLT”), in Company Application No.160 of 2017 (“Order”), meeting of the equity shareholders of Orient Paper &
Industries Limited (“the Demerged Company”) is being convened at the registered office of the Demerged Company at Unit —
VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar, Odisha, India on Thursday, the 29th day of June 2017 at 10 A.M.for the purpose of
considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification, the Scheme of Arrangement between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 - 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Scheme”).

A copy of the Scheme which has been, inter alia, approved by the Audit Committee of the Demerged Company and the Board
of Directors of the Demerged Company at their respective meetings held on 17th October 2016 is enclosed as Annexure 1.
Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Scheme unless otherwise stated.
In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the said meeting of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company shall be 30
(thirty) members present in person.

Further, in terms of the said Order, NCLT, has appointed Ms. Anima Maiti as the Chairperson of the meeting of the Demerged
Company, including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (the “Rules”).
As stated earlier, NCLT, by its said Order, has directed that meetings of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company,
secured creditors of the Demerged Company, unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company, equity shareholders of the
Resulting Company and unsecured creditors of the Resulting Company shall be convened and held at the registered office
of the Applicant Companies on Thursday, the 29th day of June 2017 for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit,
approving, with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme. The said shareholders and creditors of
the Applicant Companies would be entitled to vote in the said meeting(s) as the case may be either in person or through proxy.
In addition, the Demerged Company is seeking the approval of its equity shareholders to the Scheme by way of voting through
postal ballot and e-voting.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 — 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if a majority in
number representing three fourths in value of the members, or class of members, of the Demerged Company, as the case may
be, voting in person or by proxy or by postal ballot (which includes e-voting), agree to the Scheme.

In terms of the Order dated 18th day of May 2017, passed by the NCLT, in Company Application No.160 of 2017, if the
entries in the books/registers of the Demerged Company in relation to the number/value of the shares are disputed, the
Chairman shall determine the number/value for the purposes of the said meeting and his decision in that behalf shall be final.

Particulars of the Demerged Company
7.

The Demerged Company was incorporated on the 25th day of July 1936 under the name and style of “Orient Paper Mills
Limited” under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913 as a public company limited by shares. Thereafter, the name

8
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12.

of the Demerged Company was changed to its existing name with effect from 13th September 1978. There has been no change
in the name of the Demerged Company in the last five (5) years. The Corporate Identification Number of the Demerged
Company is L210110R1936PLC000117. The Permanent Account Number of the Demerged Company is AAACO3279]. The
equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE”) and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE”).

The Registered Office of Demerged Company is situated at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012,
Odisha. There has been no change in the registered office address of the Demerged Company in last five (5) years. The e-mail
address of the Demerged Company is cosec @orientpaperindia.com.

The objects for which Demerged Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. Some of the
relevant objects of Demerged Company are, inter alia, as follows:

“3.(1) To carry on the manufacture of Pulp, Paper, Boards and other articles and the business of buyers, sellers, dealers,
exporters of any goods or merchandise whatsoever and to transact all manufacturing or treating and preparing
processes and mercantile business and to purchase and vend raw material and manufactured articles.

(1).(HHH) To carry on the business of designing, manufacturing, processing, treating, preparing, assembling, fabricating,
importing, exporting, buying, selling, trading, leasing and/or otherwise dealing in all kinds and types of electrical,
mechanical, structural goods, materials, components, apparatus, devices, appliances, equipments and accessories
including electrical motor, transformers, generators, accumulators, cables and wires, fans, dynamos, starters and
automobile components and accessories.

I(1)(a) To carry on business of all kinds of designers, manufacturers, processors, assemblers, fabricators, dealers,
traders, commission agents, distributors, suppliers, importers, exporters, contractors, consultants and to deal in
any manner including hiring, renting, leasing, storing, packing, transporting, converting, repairing, installing,
training, with regard to servicing, maintenance of all types of electrical, electronic and telecommunication plants,
stations, goods, materials, components, apparatus, devices, appliances, equipments and accessories.”

Clause (10) of Object Clause III of the Memorandum of Association of the Demerged Company, which contains provision for
amalgamation is reproduced herein below:

“(10) To enter into partnership or into any arrangement for sharing profits, union of interests, co-operation, joint
adventure, reciprocal concession or otherwise or amalgamate with any person or company carrying on or
engaged in or about to carry on or engage in any business or transaction capable of being carried or conducted
so as directly or indirectly to benefit this Company and to lend money to or guarantee the contracts of or otherwise
assist any such person or company and to take or otherwise acquire shares and security of any such company or
in any other of the company having objects altogether or in part similar to those of this company and to sell, hold
reissue with or without guarantee or otherwise deal with the same.”

There has been no change in the object clause of the Demerged Company in the last 5 years.
The brief description of the major activities being carried out by the Demerged Company are as under:

10.1. The Demerged Company has various manufacturing divisions, viz. (i) manufacture and distribution of paper and paper
products such as writing paper, printing paper and tissue paper (collectively referred to as the “Paper Business™); and
(i1) manufacture and distribution of consumer appliances such as fans, lighting products, Home Appliances and switch
gears (collectively referred to as the “Consumer Electric Business”).

10.2. The Demerged Company holds 100% paid-up equity share capital of the Resulting Company.

The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Demerged Companyas on 31st December 2016 was as
follows:

Authorised Share Capital Amount (Rs)
75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 75,00,00,000
25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 25,00,00,000

Total 100,00,00,000
Issued Share Capital
20,48,87,970-Equity Shares of Re 1 each 20,48,87,970

Total 20,48,87,970
Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Share Capital
20,48,68,760-Equity Shares of Re 1 each, fully paid up 20,48,68,760
Add: Forfeited shares (Amount originally paid-up) 9,605

Total 20,48,78,365

Subsequent to the aforesaid accounts, on 17th February 2017, the Demerged Company has, pursuant to rights issue of shares,
issued and allotted 73,16,742 equity shares of Re.1/- each aggregating to Rs. 73,16,742/-, as a result whereof, the Issued,
Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Demerged Company has been increased to Rs. 21,21,95,107/- divided into
21,21,85,502 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each,fully paid up and a sum of Rs.9,605/- on account of forfeited shares.



Particulars of the Resulting Company

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Resulting Company was incorporated on 10th October 2016 as a public company limited by shares under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. There has been no change in the name of the Resulting Company in the last five (5) years. The
Corporate Identification Number of the Resulting Company is U311000R2016PLC025892. The Permanent Account Number
of the Resulting Company is AACCO3929R. The shares of the Resulting Company are not listed on any Stock Exchange.

The Registered Office of the Resulting Company is situated at Unit — VIIIL, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012,
Odisha. There has been no change in the registered office address of the Resulting Company in last five (5) years. The e-mail
address of the Resulting Company is manoj.dugar@orientelectric.com

The objects for which the Resulting Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. Some of
the relevant objects of the Resulting Company are as follows:

“IIL.(A).1. To carry on the business of manufacturing, assembling, altering, exchanging, buying, selling, importing, exporting,
servicing or otherwise dealing in all types of consumer electrical goods, home appliances, personal appliances,
electronic equipment and instruments including ceiling fans, table fan, pedestal fan, wall mounting fan, exhaust
fans, industrial fans, special purpose fans, cooler products, instant water heaters, storage metal water heaters,
immersion water heater, dry/steam irons, juicers, mixers, grinders, hand blenders, electric kettles, toasters, coffee
makers, induction cooktops, home ups, rechargeable lanterns, air coolers, room heaters, commercial luminaires,
industrial luminaires, streetlight luminaires, post top/landscape luminaires, flood lighting luminaires, LED lighting
luminaires, lighting fixtures, bulbs, fluorescent tubes, domestic pumps, agriculture pumps, industrial pumps,
audio/video door phone, access-control systems, home-automation solutions, video surveillance/electronic access
control, fire alarm and control systems, plugs & sockets/interlocked switch socket, enclosures, cable glands/cable
reels and its accessories including chokes, starters, switches and condensers, undertake turnkey projects, combine
two or more of its products, provide after sales services, provide consultancy and other services and solutions in
relation to its products.”

Clause (B.36.) of Object Clause 3 of the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company, which contains provision

for amalgamation is reproduced herein below:

“(B) 36. To amalgamate, merge, demerge, enter into partnership or into any arrangement for sharing or pooling of profits,
amalgamation, union of interest, cooperation, joint venture, reciprocal concession or otherwise with any person,
firm or company carrying on or engaged in or about to carry on any business or transaction which may seem
capable of being carried on or conducted so as, directly or indirectly to benefit the Company.”

There has been no change in the object clause of the Resulting Company in the last 5 years.

The brief description of some of the major businesses being carried out by the Resulting Company along with its subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are as under:

16.1. The Resulting Company has been incorporated for the purposes of undertaking the business of manufacture and sale of
electric products.

16.2. The Demerged Company holds the entire paid up share capital of the Resulting Company.

The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Resulting Company as on 31st December 2016 was as
follows:

Authorised Share Capital Amount (Rs)
5,00,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital
5,00,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000

Subsequent to 31st December 2016, there has not been any change in the Authorised, Issued or Paid up Share Capital of the
Demerged Company.

Description and Rationale for the Scheme

19.

20.

The Scheme provides for demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company (as defined in the Scheme) to
the Resulting Company. The proposal is to be implemented in terms of the Scheme under Sections 230 - 232 of the Act.

The rationale for the Scheme is as under:
(a) The Demerged Company is engaged in 2 (two) distinct lines of business namely:

i)  manufacture and distribution of paper and paper products such as writing paper, printing paper and tissue paper -
(collectively referred to as the “Paper Business™); and

i)  manufacture and distribution of consumer appliances such as fans, lighting products, Home Appliances and switch
gears (collectively referred to as the “Consumer Electric Business”).

(b) The nature of risk and competition involved in each of the Paper Business and Consumer Electric Business is distinct,
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necessitating different management approaches and focus. Moreover, the competitive dynamics of these businesses are
also different.

(c) The separation of the Consumer Electric Business, by way of the Scheme from the Demerged Company would lead to
significant benefits for both businesses including:
(i) enable a dedicated management focus and to accelerate growth of the Consumer Electric Business unlocking
significant value for the shareholders of Orient Paper and Industries Limited; and
(ii) access to varied sources of funds for the rapid growth of both businesses.

(d) With a view to achieve the aforesaid growth potential of the respective businesses, the Demerged Company proposes to
re-organise and segregate, by way of the Scheme, its business, undertaking and investments in the Consumer Electric
Business.

The Scheme does not have any adverse effect on either the shareholders or the employees or the creditors of the Demerged
Company.

Corporate Approvals

21.

22.

23.

The proposed Scheme, was placed before the Audit Committee of the Demerged Company at its meeting held on 17th October
2016. The Audit Committee of the Demerged Company took into account the Valuation Report/Share Exchange Ratio/Share
Entitlement Ratio, dated 17th October 2016, issued by M/s. NDA & Associates, an independent chartered accountant (the
“Valuation Report”) and the fairness opinion, dated 17th October 2016, provided by M/s. IDBI Capital Markets & Securities
Limited, a Category I Merchant Banker (“Fairness Opinion”), appointed for this purpose by the Demerged Company. A copy
of the Valuation Report is enclosed as Annexure 2. The Valuation Report is also open for inspection at the registered office
of the Demerged Company. A copy of the Fairness Opinion is enclosed as Annexure 3. The Audit Committee based on the
aforesaid, inter alia, recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company.

The Scheme along with the Valuation Report was placed before the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, at their
meeting dated 17th October 2016. The Fairness Opinion and the report of the Audit Committee was also submitted to the
Board of Directors of the Demerged Company. Based on the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company
approved the Scheme. The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, held on 17th October 2016, was
attended by Mr. C K Birla, Mr. B K Jhawar, Mr. A Ghosh, Mr. Michael Bastian, Mr. N S Sisodia, Directors and Mr. M.L.
Pachisia, Managing Director (Mr. C K Birla, Chairman, being part of Promoter Group of the Demerged Company, abstained
from voting on the resolution in respect of the Scheme). None of the directors of the Demerged Company who attended the
meeting voted against the Scheme.Thus, the Scheme was approved unanimously by the directors of the Demerged Company
who attended and voted at the meeting.

Separately, the proposed Scheme along with the Valuation Report was placed before the Board of Directors of the Resulting
Company, at their meeting dated 17th October 2016. Based on the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company
approved the Scheme. The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company, held on 17th October 2016, was
attended by Mr. M L Pachisia and Mr. P K Sonthalia, Directors. None of the directors of the Resulting Company who attended
the meeting voted against the Scheme. Thus, the Scheme was approved unanimously by the directors of the Resulting
Company who attended and voted at the meeting.

Approvals and actions taken in relation to the Scheme

24.

25.

26.

217.

BSE Ltd. was appointed as the designated stock exchange by the Demerged Company for the purpose of coordinating with the
SEBI, pursuant to the Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 issued by SEBI (“SEBI Circular”). The Demerged Company has
received observation letters regarding the Scheme from the BSE and the NSE, respectively, both on 15th March 2017. BSE
and NSE has advised the Company vide their respective observations letters to disclosed the fact that Ms. Gauri Rasgotra was
also a director in Visa Steel Limited and her name featured in the list of RBI wilful defaulters. She has resigned on July 27,
2016. Copies of the observation letters both dated 15th March 2017, received from BSE and NSE, respectively, are enclosed
as Annexure 4.

As required by the SEBI Circular, the Demerged Company had filed the complaints report with BSE and NSE, on 9th March
2017 and 25th January 2017 respectively. This report indicates that the Demerged Company received NIL complaints. A copy
of the complaints report submitted by the Demerged Company to BSE and NSE, dated 9th March 2017 and 25th January
2017is enclosed as Annexure 5.

The Applicant Companies or any of them would obtain such necessary approvals/sanctions/no objection(s) from the regulatory
or other governmental authorities, if so required.

The Scheme was filed by the Companies with the NCLT, on 31st March 2017.

Salient extracts of the Scheme

28. The salient extracts of the Scheme are as under:

DEFINITIONS

A. “Appointed Date” means opening business hours of 1 March 2017.

B. “Demerged Company”’means Orient Paper and Industries Limited, a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under

the provisions of the Companies Act, 1913, under Corporate Identity No L210110R1936PLC000117 and having its registered
office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India.
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“Demerged Undertaking” means all the business, undertakings, properties, investments and liabilities of whatsoever nature
and kind and where so ever situated, of the Demerged Company, in relation to and pertaining to the Consumer Electric
Business on a going concern basis, as on the Appointed Date, together with all its assets and liabilities and shall include
(without limitation):

a) all the movable and immovable properties, tangible or intangible, including all computers and accessories, software,
applications and related data, equity shares, preference shares and other securities of associate / subsidiary / joint
venture companies (excluding investment in equity shares of the Resulting Company), plant and machinery, equipment,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles, stocks and inventory, leasehold assets and other properties, real, corporeal and incorporeal,
in possession or reversion, present and contingent assets (whether tangible or intangible) of whatsoever nature,
assets including cash in hand, amounts lying in the banks, investments, escrow accounts, claims, powers, authorities,
allotments, approvals, consents, letters of intent, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements, rights, credits,
titles, interests, benefits, advantages, freehold, leasehold rights, brands, sub-letting tenancy rights, with or without the
consent of the landlord as may be required by Applicable Law, goodwill, other intangibles, industrial and other licenses,
approvals, permits, authorisations, trademarks, trade names, patents, patent rights, copyrights, and other industrial and
intellectual properties and rights of any nature whatsoever including know-how, websites, portals, domain names, or any
applications for the above, assignments and grants in respect thereof, import quotas and other quota rights, right to use
and avail of telephones, telex, facsimile, email, internet, leased lines and other communication facilities, connections,
installations and equipment, utilities, electricity and electronic and all other services of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever, provisions, funds, and benefits (including all work-in progress), of all agreements, arrangements, deposits,
advances, recoverable and receivables, whether from government, semi-government, local authorities or any other
person including customers, contractors or other counter parties, etc., all earnest monies and/or deposits, privileges,
liberties, easements, advantages, benefits, exemptions, licenses, privileges and approvals of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situated, belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession or control of or vested in or granted in
favour of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company in relation to the Consumer Electric Business as on the Appointed
Date;

b) all receivables, loans and advances, including accrued interest thereon, all advance payments, earnest monies and/or
security deposits, payment against warrants, if any, or other entitlements of the Demerged Company pertaining to the
Consumer Electric Business as on the Appointed Date;

c) all employees of the Demerged Company engaged in or in relation to the Consumer Electric Business along with
all benefits under employment including gratuity, superannuation, pension benefits and the provident fund or other
compensation or benefits of such employees;

d) all the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations including contingent liabilities of the Demerged Company in relation to
the Consumer Electric Business as on the Appointed Date; and

e) all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, records of standard operating procedures, computer
programs along with their licenses, drawings, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials, lists
of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing information and other
records whether in physical or electronic form, in connection with or relating to the Consumer Electric Business of the
Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date.

Any question that may arise as to whether a specific asset (tangible or intangible) or any liability pertains or does not pertain
to the Consumer Electric Business or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the Consumer Electric Business or
not, shall be decided by the Board of the Demerged Company or any committee thereof.

“Effective Date”means opening of business hours of the last of the dates on which the conditions specified in the Scheme are
complied with.

“High Court”means the Hon’ble High Court of Orissa at Cuttack, having jurisdiction in relation to the Demerged Company
and the Resulting Company. In the event that the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to scheme(s) of
arrangement(s) become applicable and effective for the purposes of the Scheme, all references to the High Court in the
Scheme shall be deemed to include reference to the National Company Law Tribunal.

“Record Date”’shall be the date to be fixed by the Board of the Demerged Company in consultation with the Resulting
Company, for the purpose of determining the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company for issue of New Equity Shares
(as defined in the Scheme), pursuant to the Scheme.

“Remaining Undertaking”means all the undertakings, businesses, activities and operations of the Demerged Company other
than those comprised in the Demerged Undertaking.

“Resulting Company”means Orient Electric Limited, a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, under Corporate Identity No U311000R2016PLC025892 and having its registered office at Unit
— VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India.

With effect from the Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions of the Scheme in relation to the mode of transfer and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking, the Demerged Undertaking shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
and stand transferred to and vested in, and/or be deemed to have been and stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company on a going concern basis, so as to become on and from the Appointed Date, the estate, assets, rights, title, interest
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and authorities of the Resulting Company, pursuant to Section 394(2) of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Act and in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

With effect from the Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions of the Scheme in relation to the mode of transfer and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking, the Demerged Undertaking shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
and stand transferred to and vested in, and/or be deemed to have been and stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company on a going concern basis, so as to become on and from the Appointed Date, the estate, assets, rights, title, interest
and authorities of the Resulting Company, pursuant to Section 394(2) of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Act and in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 4.1 (as defined in the Scheme), on and from the Appointed Date:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

the Demerged Undertaking including all its assets, properties, investments, shareholding interests in other companies,
claims, title, interest, assets of whatsoever nature such as licenses and all other rights, title, interest, contracts or powers
of every kind, nature and description of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated shall, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 394 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, and pursuant to the order of the High Court sanctioning
the Scheme and without further act or deed or instrument, but subject to the charges affecting the same as on the
Appointed Date, be and stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company as a going concern.

without prejudice to the generality of above, with respect to the assets forming part of the Demerged Undertaking that
are movable in nature or are otherwise capable of being transferred by manual delivery or by paying over or endorsement
and/or delivery, the same may be so transferred by the Demerged Company without any further act or execution of an
instrument with the intent of vesting such assets with the Resulting Company.

without prejudice to the aforesaid, the Demerged Undertaking, including all immoveable property, whether or not
included in the books of the Demerged Company, whether freehold or leasehold (including but not limited to land,
buildings, sites and immovable properties and any other document of title, rights, interest and easements in relation
thereto) of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, without any
act or deed to be done or executed by the Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company. For the purpose of giving
effect to the vesting order passed under Section 394 of the Act in respect of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall
be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all its obligations, in
relation to or applicable to all such immovable properties, including mutation and/or substitution of the ownership or the
title to, or interest in the immovable properties which shall be made and duly recorded by the Appropriate Authority(ies)
in favour of the Resulting Company pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the High Court and upon the effectiveness
of the Scheme in accordance with the terms hereof without any further act or deed to be done or executed by the
Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company. It is clarified that the Resulting Company shall be entitled to
engage in such correspondence and make such representations, as may be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid
mutation and/or substitution.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, from the Appointed Date and until the owned property, leasehold
property and related rights thereto, license /right to use the immovable property, tenancy rights, liberties and special
status are transferred, vested, recorded effected and or perfected, in the record of the Appropriate Authority, in favour of
the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company is deemed to be authorized to carry on business in the name and style of
the Demerged Company under the relevant agreement, deed, lease and/or license, as the case may be, and the Resulting
Company shall keep a record and/or account of such transactions.

with respect to the assets of the Demerged Undertaking other than those referred to in sub-clause (c) above, whether
or not the same is held in the name of the Demerged Company, the same shall, without any further act, instrument or
deed, be transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company on the
Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the Act. All the rights, title and interests of the Demerged
Company in any leasehold properties in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall, pursuant to Section 394(2) of the
Act and the provisions of the Scheme, without any further act or deed, be transferred to and vested in or be deemed
to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company. With regard to the licenses of the properties, the
Resulting Company will enter into novation agreements, if it is so required. The execution of such documents shall form
an integral part of the Scheme.

the consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, authorisations (including for the operation of bank accounts), powers of
attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking,
and the rights and benefits under the same shall, and all quality certifications and approvals, trademarks, brands, patents
and domain names, copyrights, industrial designs, trade secrets, trade formulae, and other intellectual property and all
other interests relating to the goods or services being dealt with by the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking, be transferred to, and vest in, the Resulting Company.

subject to the other provisions of the Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments of whatsoever
nature, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, to which the Demerged Company is a party subsisting or having effect
on or immediately before the Appointed Date shall remain in full force and effect against or in favour of the Resulting
Company and shall be binding on and be enforceable by and against the Resulting Company as fully and effectually as
if the Resulting Company had at all material times been a party thereto. The Resulting Company will, if required, enter
into a novation agreement in relation to such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments as stated above.
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(2)

(h)

®

()

(9]

(O]

(m)

()

without prejudice to the other provisions of the Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking occurs by virtue of the Scheme, the Resulting Company may, at any time on or after the Appointed Date,
in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and
execute such deeds (inducing deeds of adherence), confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary
in order to give formal effect to the provisions of the Scheme. The Resulting Company shall under the provisions of the
Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged Company to carry out or
perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Demerged Company.

in so far as the various incentives, tax exemption and benefits, tax credits, subsidies, grants, special status and other
benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Appropriate Authority, or availed of by the Demerged Company, in
relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking as on the Appointed Date are concerned, including income
tax deductions, recognitions and exemptions (including, but not limited to payments / write off by the Resulting
Company out of Transferred Liabilities under section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961, payments / write offs by the
Resulting Company out of Transferred Provisions, amount under section 36(1)(vii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 out of
the debts being transferred, unamortised amount under section 35DDA of the Income-tax Act, 1961, both under normal
provisions and under section 115JB of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the same shall, without any further act or deed, vest
with and be available to the Resulting Company on the same terms and conditions on and from the Appointed Date.

as per the provisions of Section 72A(4) and other applicable provisions of the Income- tax Act, 1961, all accumulated tax
losses and unabsorbed depreciation of the Demerged Company shall be apportioned amongst the Demerged Company
and the Resulting Company, in the ratio of assets retained by the Demerged Company and transferred to the Resulting
Company.

all debts, liabilities, loans raised and used, obligations incurred, duties of any kind, nature or description (including
contingent liabilities which arise out of the activities or operations of the Demerged Undertaking) of the Demerged
Company as on the Appointed Date and relatable to the Demerged Undertaking (“Transferred Liabilities”) shall, without
any further act or deed, be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company to the
extent that they are outstanding as on the Appointed Date and shall become the debts, liabilities, loans, obligations and
duties of the Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same. The term “Transferred Liabilities”
shall include:

1. the liabilities which arise out of the activities or operations of the Demerged Undertaking;

2. the specific loans or borrowings (including debentures raised, incurred and utilized solely for the activities or
operations of the Demerged Undertaking); and

3. in cases other than those referred to above, so much of the amounts of general or multipurpose borrowings, if any,
of the Demerged Company, as stand in the same proportion which the value of the assets transferred pursuant to
the Scheme bear to the total value of the assets of the Demerged Company immediately prior to the Appointed
Date.

in so far as any encumbrance in respect of Transferred Liabilities is concerned, such encumbrance shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed being required be modified and shall be extended to and shall operate only over the assets
comprised in the Demerged Undertaking which may have been encumbered in respect of the Transferred Liabilities
as transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to the Scheme. For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified
that in so far as the assets comprising the Remaining Undertaking are concerned, the encumbrance, if any, over such
assets relating to the Transferred Liabilities, without any further act, instrument or deed being required, be released and
discharged from the obligations and encumbrances relating to the same. Further, in so far as the assets comprised in
the Demerged Undertaking are concerned, the encumbrance over such assets relating to any loans, borrowings or other
debts which are not transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to the Scheme and which shall continue with the
Demerged Company, shall without any further act or deed be released from such encumbrance and shall no longer be
available as security in relation to such liabilities.

any tax liabilities under Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, value added tax laws, as applicable to any State in
which the Demerged Company operates, Central Sales Tax Act, 1956, any other State sales tax / value added tax laws, or
service tax, or corporation tax, income tax, or other Applicable Laws and regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies/
cess (hereinafter referred to as “Tax Laws”) to the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the Demerged
Company’s accounts, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, made as on the date immediately
preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the Resulting Company. Any surplus in the provision for taxation/
duties/ levies account as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date in relation to the Demerged Undertaking
will also be transferred to the account of and belong to the Resulting Company.

any claims due to the Demerged Company from its customers or otherwise and which have not been received by the
Demerged Company as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date as the case may be, in relation to or in
connection with the Demerged Undertaking, shall also belong to and be received by the Resulting Company.

without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits including under Tax Laws, to which the Demerged
Company, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, is entitled to in terms of the applicable Tax
Laws, including, but not limited to advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value, and deposits with any Appropriate
Authority or any third party/entity, shall be available to, and vest in, the Resulting Company.
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(o) all debentures, bonds, other debt securities and other instruments of like nature (whether convertible into equity shares
or not) including non-convertible debentures issued to/held by the Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection
with the Demerged Undertaking, shall upon coming into effect of the Scheme pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391
to 394 and other relevant provisions of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed shall stand transferred to and
vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company.

(p) Itis hereby clarified that in case of any refunds, benefits, incentives, grants, subsidies etc, in relation to or in connection
with the Demerged Undertaking, the Demerged Company shall, if so required by the Resulting Company, issue notices in
such form as the Resulting Company may deem fit and proper stating that pursuant to the High Court having sanctioned
the Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Act, the relevant refund, benefit, incentive, grant, subsidies, be paid or
made good or held on account of the Resulting Company, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the
right of the Demerged Company to recover or realise the same, stands transferred to the Resulting Company and that
appropriate entries should be passed in their respective books to record the aforesaid changes.

All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, allotments,
insurance cover, clearances, authorities, privileges, affiliations, easements, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other
benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of by and all rights and benefits that have accrued to the
Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, pursuant to the provisions of Section
394(2) of the Act, shall without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vest in or be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in and be available to the Resulting Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date,
the estates, assets, rights, title, interests and authorities of the Resulting Company and shall remain valid, effective and
enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the extent permissible in Applicable Law.

Upon the Appointed Date and until the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, rights, claims, leases,
tenancy rights, liberties, rehabilitation schemes, special status are transferred, vested, recorded, effected, and/or perfected, in
the record of the Appropriate Authority, in favor of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company is authorized to carry on
business in the name and style of the Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking,
and under the relevant license and or permit and / or approval, as the case may be, and the Resulting Company shall keep a
record and/or account of such transactions.

Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Resulting Company undertakes to engage
all the employees of the Demerged Company, engaged in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, on the same terms and
conditions on which they are engaged by the Demerged Company without any interruption of service as a result of transfer of
the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company. The Resulting Company agrees that the services of all such employees
with the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to which the
said employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other
terminal benefits and to this effect the accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the employees in the existing
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members will be transferred to such provident fund,
gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by the Resulting Company and/or such new provident fund, gratuity fund
and superannuation fund to be established and caused to be recognized by the Appropriate Authorities, by the Resulting
Company, or to the government provident fund in relation to the employees of the Demerged Company who are not eligible
to become members of the provident fund maintained by the Resulting Company. In relation to those employees who are
not covered under the provident fund trust of the Resulting Company, and for whom the Demerged Company is making
contributions to the government provident fund, the Resulting Company shall stand substituted for the Demerged Company,
for all purposes whatsoever, including relating to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund in accordance with the
provisions of such fund, bye laws, etc. in respect of such employees.

Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the employees would be
continued to be deposited in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged
Company.

The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking under the Scheme and the continuance of the Proceedings by or against
the Resulting Company under Clause 4 of the Scheme shall not affect any transaction or proceeding already completed by the
Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking till the Appointed Date to the end and intent that the Resulting
Company accepts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by and/or on behalf of the Demerged Company as acts, deeds
and things done and executed by and on behalf of the Resulting Company.

If any suit, cause of actions, appeal or other legal, taxation, quasi-judicial, arbitral, administrative, or other proceedings
of whatever nature, under any Applicable Law (hereinafter referred to as the “Proceedings™) by or against the Demerged
Company be pending, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, on the Appointed Date, the same
shall not abate, be discontinued or be in anyway prejudicially affected by reason of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking or of anything contained in the Scheme, but such Proceedings may be continued, prosecuted, defended and
enforced by or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Demerged Company as if the Scheme had not been made. On and from
the Appointed Date, the Resulting Company may initiate any Proceedings for and on behalf of the Demerged Company for
matters relating to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking. The Resulting Company shall have/all Proceedings
initiated by or against the Demerged Company with respect to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred into its name and to
have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company to the exclusion of the Demerged
Company.

15



Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking into the
Resulting Company pursuant to provisions of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall, without any further act or deed, issue
and allot to each shareholder of the Demerged Company, whose name is recorded in the register of members and records of
the depository as members of the Demerged Company, on the Record Date, 1 (one) equity shares of Re 1 (Indian Rupee one)
each of Resulting Company credited as fully paid up for every 1 (one) equity share of Re 1 (Indian Rupee One) each held
by such shareholder in the Demerged Company (“New Equity Shares”). The ratio in which equity shares of the Resulting
Company are to be issued and allotted to the shareholders of the Demerged Company is referred to as the “Share Entitlement
Ratio”.

The New Equity Shares to be issued and allotted as provided above shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Resulting Company and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity
shares of the Resulting Company after the Record Date including with respect to dividend, bonus entitlement, rights shares’
entitlement, voting rights and other corporate benefits.

In case any shareholder’s shareholding in the Demerged Company is such that such shareholder becomes entitled to a fraction
of an equity share of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall not issue fractional share certificate to such
shareholder but shall consolidate such fractions and issue and allot the consolidated shares directly to a trustee nominated
by the Board of the Resulting Company in that behalf, who shall sell such shares in the market at such price or prices and on
such time or times as the trustee may in its sole discretion decide and on such sale, shall pay to the Resulting Company, the
net sale proceeds (after deduction of applicable taxes and other expenses incurred), whereupon the Resulting Company shall,
subject to withholding tax, if any, distribute such sale proceeds to the concerned shareholders of the Demerged Company in
proportion to their respective fractional entitlements.

The New Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to Clause O above shall be issued in dematerialized form by the Resulting
Company, unless otherwise notified in writing by the shareholders of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company on
or before such date as may be determined by the Board of the Demerged Company. In the event that such notice has not been
received by the Resulting Company in respect of any of the shareholders of the Demerged Company, the New Equity Shares
shall be issued to such shareholders in dematerialized form provided that the shareholders of the Resulting Company shall
be required to have an account with a depository participant and shall be required to provide details thereof and such other
confirmations as may be required. In the event that the Resulting Company has received notice from any shareholder that
New Equity Shares are to be issued in physical form or if any shareholder has not provided the requisite details relating to
his/hers/its account with a depository participant or other confirmations as may be required or if the details furnished by any
shareholder do not permit electronic credit of the shares of the Resulting Company, then the Resulting Company shall issue
New Equity Shares in physical form to such shareholder or shareholders.

The New Equity Shares issued and/ or allotted pursuant to Clause O in respect of such of the equity shares of the Demerged
Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of Section 126 of the Act shall, pending settlement of dispute by
order of court or otherwise, be held in abeyance by the Resulting Company.

The New Equity Shares issued under the Scheme, which the Resulting Company is unable to allot due to Applicable Laws
(including, without limitation, the failure to receive approvals of an Appropriate Authority as required under Applicable
Law) or any regulations or otherwise shall, pending allotment, be held in abeyance by Resulting Company and shall be dealt
with in the manner as may be permissible under the Applicable Law and deemed fit by the Board of the Resulting Company
including to enable allotment and sale of such New Equity Shares to a trustee as mentioned in the Scheme and thereafter
make distributions of the net sales proceeds in lieu thereof (after the deduction of taxes and expenses incurred) to the eligible
shareholders of the Demerged Company, in proportion to their entitlements as per the process specified in the Scheme. If the
above cannot be effected for any reason, the Resulting Company shall ensure that this does not delay implementation of the
Scheme; and shall, take all such appropriate actions as may be necessary under Applicable Laws. The Resulting Company and
/ or the Depository shall enter into such further documents and take such further actions as may be necessary or appropriate
in this regard and to enable actions contemplated therein.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any shareholders of the Demerged
Company, the Board of the Demerged Company shall be empowered prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to
effectuate such transfers in the Demerged Company as if such changes in registered holders were operative as on the Record
Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferors of the shares in relation to the shares issued by the Resulting
Company after the Scheme comes into effect. The Board of the Demerged Company shall be empowered to remove such
difficulties that may arise in the course of implementation of the Scheme and registration of new shareholders in the Resulting
Company on account of difficulties faced in the transition period.

The issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares in terms of the Scheme shall be deemed to have been carried out as if the
procedure laid down under section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of the Act have been
complied with.

The Resulting Company shall apply for listing of its equity shares including those issued in terms of the Scheme on BSE and
NSE in terms of and in compliance of the SEBI Circular.

The New Equity Shares allotted by the Resulting Company pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories
system till listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends, whether interim or final,
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AA.

BB.

CC.

DD.

EE.

to their respective shareholders in respect of the accounting period prior to the Effective Date but only consistent with the past
practice, or in the ordinary course.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Resulting Company will automatically stand increased
to INR 25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-five crore) by simply filing the requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority and no
separate procedure or instrument or deed or payment of any stamp duty and registration fees shall be required to be followed
under the Act.

Consequently, the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company shall without any act, instrument or deed be and
stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13 and 61 of the Companies Act 2013 and Section 394 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013, as the case may be, and be replaced by the
following clause:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs 25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty five crore) divided into 25,00,00,000
(Twenty five crore) Equity Shares of Re 1/- (Rupee one only) each with power to increase and reduce the capital of the
Company or to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively any
preferential, deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or condition as may be determined by or in accordance with the
Articles of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be
for the time being provided by the Articles of the Company and the legislative provisions for the time being in force.”

It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent/
approval also to the consequential alteration of the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company and the Resulting
Company shall not be required to seek separate consent/ approval of its shareholders for such alteration of the Memorandum
of Association as required under Sections 13, 14, 61, 62 and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 1956.

Simultaneously with the issue and allotment of the new equity shares by the Resulting Company to the equity shareholders of
the Demerged Company in accordance with Clause 8.1 of the Scheme, in the books of the Resulting Company, all the equity
shares issued by the Resulting Company to the Demerged Company shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on and
from the Effective Date which shall be regarded as reduction of share capital. The order of the High Court sanctioning the
Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under section 102 of the Act confirming the reduction.

The consent of the shareholders of the Resulting Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be the consent of its shareholders
for the purposes of effecting the above reduction, if any, under provisions of Section 100 to 103 of the Act, and no further
resolution under Section 100 to 103 of the Act or any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be required to be
separately passed.

Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, in accordance with the applicable accounting standards, Companies Act, 2013 and

generally accepted accounting principles in India:

(a) The value of all assets and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged undertaking which cease to be assets and liabilities of
the Demerged Company shall be reduced by the Demerged Company at their carrying values; and

(b) The difference i.e. the excess or shortfall, as the case may be, of the value of transferred assets over the transferred
liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and demerged from the Demerged Company pursuant to the Scheme
shall be adjusted to the reserves of the Demerged Company.

Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date:

(a) the Resulting Company shall record transferred assets and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking at the
respective carrying values as appearing in the books of Demerged Company;

(b) the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company as per ClauseO. These shares
shall be issued and recorded at face value and accordingly the aggregate face value of the shares to be issued shall be
credited to the Resulting Company’s share capital account; and

(c) the difference, if any, between the book value of assets and book value of liabilities pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking, after adjusting the amount credited as share capital as per the Scheme, shall be taken to reserves.

You are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof. The aforesaid
are only some of the salient extracts thereof.

Summary of the Valuation Report

29.

30.

31.

32.

The Demerged Company has obtained valuation report from M/s NDA & Associates, Chartered Accountants and has obtained
the Fairness Opinion from M/s. IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited.

Since the Resulting Company is a company with no other activity and all the shares to be issued by it pursuant to the Scheme
are to be issued to the shareholders of the Demerged Company, in effect, no different shareholder interest is to emerge. The
principle to be considered is that the proportionate holding of the shareholders will remain the same.

In the present analysis where the proposal is of restructuring of the existing diversified activities into specific activities and
that too when the set of shareholders is identical, what is much relevant is not determination of the value of the shares of the
companies separately but the determination of the total number of shares of the Resulting Company to be issued in exchange
for/ against the existing shares of the Demerged Company.

Thus, in this type of demerger, there is no requirement for separate valuation of shares as the Resulting Company is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company and all the existing shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record
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33.

Date will become the shareholders of the Resulting Company. Upon allotment of the shares by the Resulting Company, the
ultimate beneficial economic interest of the existing shareholders of the Demerged Company in the equity of the Resulting
Company will be the same as it is in the equity of the Demerged Company.

In view of the above, the share entitlement ratio of 1 (one) equity shares of Re 1 (Indian Rupee one) each of Resulting
Company for every 1 (one) equity share of Re 1 (Indian Rupee One) each held by such shareholder in the Demerged Company
in consideration for the Scheme is fair and reasonable.

Other matters

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

The accounting treatment as proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under Section
133 of the Act. The certificates issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Companies are open for inspection.

Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors, either secured or unsecured of the Demerged Company except
to the extent that upon the effectiveness of Part II of the Scheme, the creditors belonging to the Demerged Undertaking of
the Demerged Company shall become the creditors of the Resulting Company in the manner as provided in the Scheme. No
compromise is offered under the Scheme to any of the creditors of the Applicant Companies. The liability of the creditors of
the Demerged Company, under the Scheme, is neither being reduced nor being extinguished. The creditors of the Applicant
Companies would in no way be affected by the present Scheme.

As on date, the Demerged Company has no outstanding towards any debentures and public deposits and therefore, the effect
of the Scheme on any such debenture holders or public deposit holders does not arise.

Under Clause 6 of Part II of the Scheme, on and from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company undertakes to engage all the
Employees of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking on the same terms and conditions on which
they are engaged by the Demerged Company without any interruption of service and in the manner provided under Clause 6
of Part II of the Scheme. In the circumstances, the rights of the Employees of the Demerged Company would in no way be
affected by the Scheme.

The key managerial personnel of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall be the Employees of
the Resulting Company.

Further, none of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of the
Applicant Companies and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) have any interest
in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity shares held by them in the Applicant Companies and/or to the extent that
the said Director(s) are common director(s) of the Applicant Companies. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the
Key Managerial Personnel has any material interest in the Scheme. The shareholding of each of the said Directors, the Key
Managerial Personnel and their respective relatives, is less than 2% of the paid-up share capital of each of the Companies.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company have
adopted a report explaining effect, as aforesaid, of Compromise on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel,
promoters and non-promoter shareholders laying out in particular the share exchange ratio. A copy of the said Report is
enclosed as Annexure 6.

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Applicant Companiesunder Sections 210 to
229 of Chapter XIV of the Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956.Further, no proceedings are pending
under the Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956 against any of the Applicant Companies.

To the knowledge of the Applicant Companies, no winding up proceedings have been filed or are pending against them under
the Act or the corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956.

The Unaudited Financial Results of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company for the quarter ended 31st December
2016 are enclosed as Annexure 7.

The Demerged Company had 24105 Equity Shareholders holding total paid up share capital of the Demerged Company as on
24th February, 2017 and 6 Secured Creditors having total claim of Rs.283,20,74,502.38.; 3384 Unsecured Creditors having
claims of Rs. 328,40,68,782.02 as on 28th February, 2017.

The Resulting Company had 1 Equity Shareholders holding the entire paid up share capital of the Company as on 24th
February, 2017 and 2 Unsecured Creditors having claims of Rs. 87,19,422 as on 28th February, 2017.

The name and addresses of the promoters of the Demerged Company including their shareholding in the Companies as on
31st March 2017 are as under:

SI No. Name of Promoter Address Shareholding
1. Chandra Kant Birla 24, Aurangzeb Road, New Delhi 110011 32,69,893
2. Nirmala Birla 8/9, Alipore Road, Kolkata-700027 38,78,410
3. Amita Birla 8/9, Alipore Road,Kolkata-700027 2,60,000
4. Avanti Birla 8/9, Alipore Road, Kolkata-700027 1,34,642
5. Avani Birla 8/9, Alipore Road,Kolkata-700027 1,30,000
6. Shyam Sundar Jajodia 4F, Ground Floor- I, Loard Sinha Road, 2,80,000
Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700071
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40.

41.

42.

SI No. Name of Promoter Address Shareholding
7. Shekhavati Investments and Traders Ltd. | 78,Syed Amir Ali Avenue, Kolkata-700019 1,27,60,895
8. Ashok Investment Corporation Ltd Birla Building, 11th floor, 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee 6,83,038

Road, Kolkata-700001
9. Central India Industries Ltd 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 5,25,59,648
10. Rajasthan Industries Ltd 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 14th floor, 6,90,035
Kolkata-700001
11. National Engineering Industries Ltd 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 5,37,400
12, Gwalior Finance Corporation Ltd. 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 11th floor, 16,49,375
Kolkata-700001
13. | Hindusthan Discounting Company Ltd 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 23,10,678
14. Universal Trading Company Ltd 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 8,44,280
15. | India Silica Magnesite Works Ltd Birla Building, 11th floor, 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee 2,00,000
Road, Kolkata-700001
16. | Bengal Rubber Company Ltd. 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 1,95,000
17. Amer Investments (Delhi) Ltd Birla Tower, 8th floor, 25, Barakhamba Road, 14,22,000
New Delhi-110001
18. | Jaipur Finance and Dairy Products Pvt 78,Syed Amir Ali Avenue, Kolkata-700019 2,08,000
Ltd

The name and addresses of the promoters of the Resulting Company including their shareholding in the Companies as on

31st March 2017 are as under:

Name of the Promoters

Address

Shareholding

Orient Paper & Industries Ltd.

Unit VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar - 751012

500,000

2017 are as follows:

The details of the directors of the Demerged Company and their shareholding in the Demerged Company as on 31st March

(DIN: 00065431)

Name of Directors Address Shareholding
Shri Chandra Kant Birla 24, Aurangzeb Road, New Delhi 110011 32,69,893
(DIN: 00118473)
Shri Basant Kumar Jhawar 51/F, Gariahat Road, Kolkata-700 019 NIL
(DIN: 00086237)
Shri Amitabha Ghosh Flat No.32, Mehernaz, 91, Cuffe Parade, Mumbai-400005 7,400
(DIN: 00055962)
Shri Michael Bastian Cecilia, 1186, 22nd Cross 14th Main, H.S.R. Layout, Sector-III, 26,733
(DIN: 00458062) Bangalore-560102
Shri Narendra Singh Sisodia B-30, Bapu Nagar, Jaipur- 302015 NIL
(DIN: 06363951)
Ms. Gauri Rasgotra 6B, Block B, Hudco Place, Andrews Ganj Extension, NIL
(DIN: 06862334) Behind Ansal Plaza, New Delhi-110 049
Shri Manohar Lal Pachisia 4, Alipore Park Place, 3rd floor, Kolkata-700027 37,948

2017 are as follows:

The details of the directors of the Resulting Company and their shareholding in the Resulting Company as on 31st March

(DIN: 00065335)

Name of Directors Address Shareholding
Shri Manohar Lal Pachisia 4, Alipore Park Place, 3rd floor, Kolkata-7000 27 NIL
(DIN: 00065431)
Shri Pradeep Kumar Sonthalia Mani Karn, Flat No.7EE, 3B, Ram Mohan Mullick Garden Lane, NIL
(DIN: 00065464) Kolkata 700 010
Shri Pramod Chandra Agarwala | 233, Lower Circular Road, Flat No.7, Kolkata-700020 NIL
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43. The details of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Demerged Company and their shareholding in the Demerged
Company as on 31st March 2017 are as follows:

Secretary

Name of the Directors/ KMP Address Shareholding
and designation
Shri Manohar Lal Pachisia, 4, Alipore Park Place, 3rd floor, Kolkata-7000 27 37,948
Managing Director
Shri Pradeep Kumar Sonthalia, Mani Karn, Flat No.7EE, 3B, Ram Mohan Mullick Garden 15,920
CFO Lane, Kolkata 700 010
Shri Ram Prasad Dutta, Company | Sreenagar 3, Madhyamgram, Kolkata 700129 NIL

44. The details of the shareholding of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Resulting Company as on 31st March 2017
are as follows:

45.

46.

Name of KMP

Shareholding

There are no KMP in Resulting Company

NIL

The rights and interests of the Promoters and Non-Promoter shareholders of the Companies involved in the Scheme will not
be prejudicially affected by the Scheme. The effect of the Scheme on the Promoter and Non-Promoter shareholders of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company is detailed herein:

45.1. Demerged Company: Since the Scheme does not provide for issuance of any shares by the Demerged Company and
hence the pre and post shareholding of the Demerged Company shall remain the same. The shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall be eligible for issuance of shares of the Resulting Company in the ratio provided in the Scheme

45.2. Resulting Company: Entire pre scheme paid up equity share capital of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged
Company shall stand cancelled pursuant to the Scheme. Further in consideration to the Scheme, the Resulting Company
shall issue 1 (one) equity shares of Re 1 (Indian Rupee one) each of Resulting Company for every 1 (one) equity share
of Re 1 (Indian Rupee One) each held by such shareholder in the Demerged Company.

The pre-Scheme shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company as on 31st March 2017and the
post-Scheme (expected) shareholding pattern of Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are as under:

Pre and Post arrangementshareholding pattern of Demerged Company as on 31st March 2017:

SI No | Category of Shareholder Number of folios Number of % of
Shares held shareholdings
I Promoter & Promoter Group
A. Indian 18 82013294 38.65
B. Foreign - -
II | Public

A. Institution

i) Mutual funds 12 26653617 12.56
ii) Foreign Portfolio Investors 12 8090883 3.81
iii)Financial Institutions/Banks 14 1036505 0.49
iv) Insurance Companies 4 10305888 4.86
v) Central/State Governments 4000 0.00
B. Non-Institutions

i) Individuals holding nominal share capital upto 23009 35231351 16.61

Rs. 2 lakhs
ii) Individuals holding nominal share capital in 14 8481247 4.00
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs

iii) NBFCs registered with RBI 4 357660 0.16
iv) Non Resident Indians 497 1923455 0.91
v) Bodies Corporate 710 12810254 6.04
vi) Co-operative Society 9 21463600 10.11
vii) OCB 2 3813748 1.80
Total 24306 212185502 100
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Pre-arrangement shareholding pattern of the Resulting Company as on 31st March 2017:

Sr. No Name of shareholder No. of equity shares of | Shareholding in %
Re 1/- each

1. Orient Paper & Industries Limited 4,99,994 100

2. Mr Pradeep Kumar Sonthalia 1 -
(held as a nominee of Orient Paper & Industries Limited)

3. Mr Pramod Chandra Agarwala 1 -
(held as a nominee of Orient Paper & Industries Limited)

4. Mr Manohar Lal Pachisia 1 -
(held as a nominee of Orient Paper & Industries Limited)

5. Mr Gautam Mullick 1 -
(held as a nominee of Orient Paper & Industries Limited)

6. Mr Amalendu Kuila 1 -
(held as a nominee of Orient Paper & Industries Limited)

7. Mr Niranjan Kumar Saha 1 -
(held as a nominee of Orient Paper & Industries Limited)
Total 5,00,000 100

Post-arrangement (expected) shareholding pattern of Resulting Company (considering the share holding pattern of
the Demerged company as on 31st March 2017):

SI No Category of Shareholder Number of folios | Number of Shares % of
held shareholdings
I Promoter & Promoter Group
A. Indian 18 82013294 38.65
B. Foreign - -
I Public
A. Institution
i) Mutual funds 12 26653617 12.56
ii) Foreign Portfolio Investors 12 8090883 3.81
iii)Financial Institutions/Banks 14 1036505 0.49
iv) Insurance Companies 4 10305888 4.86
v) Central/State Governments 1 4000 0.00
B. Non-Institutions
i) Individuals holding nominal share capital 23009 35231351 16.61
uptoRs. 2 lakhs
ii) Individuals holding nominal share capital in 14 8481247 4.00
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs
iii) NBFCs registered with RBI 4 357660 0.16
iv) Non Resident Indians 497 1923455 0.91
v) Bodies Corporate 710 12810254 6.04
vi) Co-operative Society 9 21463600 10.11
vii) OCB 2 3813748 1.80
Total 24306 212185502 100

The post-Scheme (expected) capital structure of Demerged Company will be as follows (assuming the continuing capital
structure as on 31st March 2017):

Authorised Share Capital Amount (Rs)
75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 75,00,00,000
25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 25,00,00,000

Total 100,00,00,000
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48.

49.

50.

Issued Share Capital

20,48,87,970-Equity Shares of Re 1 each 20,48,87,970

73,16,742 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each on Rights basis 73,16,742
Total 21,22,04,712

Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Share Capital

20,48,68,760-Equity Shares of Re 1 each, fully paid up 20,48,68,760

73,16,742 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each on Rights basis 73,16,742
Total 21,21,85,502

Add: Forfeited shares (Amount originally paid-up) 9,605
Total 21,21,95,107

The post-Scheme (expected) capital structure of Resulting Company will be as follows (assuming the continuing capital
structure as on 31st March 2017:

Authorised Share Capital Amount (Rs)
25,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 25,00,00,000
Total 25,00,00,000
Issued Share Capital
21,21,85,502 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 21,21,85,502
Total 21,21,85,502
Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Share Capital
21,21,85,502 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 21,21,85,502
Total 21,21,85,502

In the event that the Scheme is withdrawn in accordance with its terms, the Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of
no effect and null and void.

The following documents will be open for inspection by the shareholders of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company
at its registered office at Unit VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar - 751012 between 10.00 A.M. and 12 noon on all
days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays)upto the date of the meeting:

(1) Copy of the order passed by NCLT in Company Application No. 160, dated 18th day of May 2017 directing the
Applicant Companies to, inter alia, convene the meetings of their shareholders and creditors;

(i) Copy of the Company Application No.160 of 2017 along with annexures filed by the Applicant Companies before
NCLT;

(iii) Copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Applicant Companies;

(iv) Copy of the annual reports of the Demerged Company for the financial years ended 31st March 2016 and 31st March
2015, respectively;

(v) Unaudited Financial Results of the Demerged Company and audited financial statements of the Resulting Company for
the quarter ended 31st December 2016;

(vi) Statement showing assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking as on appointed date as defined in the Scheme,
i.e. Ist March 2017 proposed to be demerged and transferred to the Resulting Company;

(vii) Copy of the Register of Directors’ shareholding of each of the Applicant Companies;

(viii) Copy of Valuation/Share Exchange Ratio/Share Entitlement Ratio report dated 17th October 2016 submitted by M/s.
NDA & Associates, Chartered Accountants;

(ix) Copy of the Fairness Opinion, dated 17th October 2016, issued by M/s. IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited, to
the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company;

(x) Copy of the Audit Committee Report dated 17th October 2016, of the Demerged Company;

(xi) Copy of the resolutions, all dated 17th day of October 2016, passed by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company, approving the Scheme;

(xii) Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificate dated 17th day of October 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co., Chartered
Accountants stating that the accounting treatment is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013;
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51.

52.

(xiii) Copy of the complaints report, dated 9th March 2017 and 25th January 2017, submitted by the Demerged Company to
BSE and NSE respectively;

(xiv) Copy of the no adverse observations/no objection letter issued by BSE and NSE, both dated 15th day of March 2017,
respectively, to the Demerged Company;

(xv) Copy of the Scheme.

The shareholders shall be entitled to obtain the extracts from or for making or obtaining the copies of the documents listed
above.

This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Act read with
Rule 6 of the Rules. A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement and Form of Proxy shall be furnished by the Demerged
Company to its shareholders/creditors, free of charge, within one (1)day (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) on
a requisition being so made for the same by the shareholders/creditors of the Demerged Company.

After the Scheme is approved by the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors (including debentureholders)
of the Demerged Company, it will be subject to the approval/sanction by NCLT.

Dated this 24th day of May 2017

sd/-Anima Maiti

Chairperson appointed for the meeting

Registered office:
Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar
Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha.
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
BETWEEN
ORIENT PAPER AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
AND
ORIENT ELECTRIC LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

(UNDER SECTIONS 391 TO 394 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND

OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

A.

{n

PREAMBLE

This scheme of arrangement (hereinafter referred to as the "Scheme") provides for
demerger of the Demerged Undertaking {as defined hereinafter) of Orient Paper and
Industries Limited and transfer of the same to Orient Electric Limited pursuant to the
provisians of Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable
provisians of the Companies Act, 1956 and /or the Companles Act, 2013 (to the extent
notified and applicable).

DESCRIPTION OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE RESULTING COMPANY

Orient Paper and Industries Limited is a public company, limited by shares, incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1913, under Corporate Identity Mo
L210110R1936PLC000117 and having Its registered office at Unit — VIll, Plot No. 7,
Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India ("Demerged Company”) and has two
primary business segments, being the paper business and the consumer electric business,
The equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on BSE Limited and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Crient Electric Limited |s a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, under Corporate |Identity No
U311000R2016PLCO25892 and having Its registered office at Unit — VIIl, Plot No. 7,
Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar, Cuttack — 751012, Odisha, India (“Resulting Company"). The
Resulting Company has been incorporated to carry out the business of consumer electric
business. The entire share capital of the Resulting Company is directly held by the Demerged
Company.

RATIONALE
The Demerged Company is engaged in 2 {two} distinct lines of business namely:
(a) manufacture and distribution of paper and paper products such as writing paper,

printing paper and tissue paper - (collectively referred to as the “Paper Business”);
and

b

ANNEXURE 1



(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

()

(i)

(i)

b) manufacture and distribution of consumer appliances such as fans, lighting products,
Home Appliances and switch gears (collectively referred to as the “Consumer
Electric Business”).

The nature of risk and competition involved In each of the Paper Business and Consumer
Electric Business |s distinct, necessitating different management approaches and focus,
Mareover, the competitive dynamics of these businesses are also different.

The separation of the Cansumer Electric Business, by way of this Scheme from the
Demerged Company would lead to significant benefits for both businesses including:

{a) enable a dedicated management focus and to accelerate growth of the Consumer
Electric Business unlocking significant value for the shareholders of Orient Paper and
Industries Limited; and

(b) access to varied sources of funds for the rapid growth of both businesses.

With a view to achieve the aforesaid growth potential, the Demerged Company proposes to
re-organise and segregate, by way of the Scheme, its business, undertaking and investments
in the Consumer Electric Business.

The Scheme does not have any adverse effect on either the shareholders or the employees
or the creditors af the Demerged Company,

OPERATION OF THE SCHEME

Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company is proposed to be demerged, pursudant to
Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and /or the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and
applicable), and/or any other Applicable Laws and be transferred to the Resulting Company
for achleving the above mentioned objectives.

The Resulting Company shall issue and allot shares to all the shareholders of the Demerged
Company as consideration for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking in proportion to
their shareholding In the Demerged Company and simultaneously with such issuance, in the
books of the Resulting Company, all the equity shares issued by the Resulting Company to
the Demerged Company shall stand cancelled, extingulshed and annulled on and from the
Effective Date,

The demerger of the Demerged Undertaking in accordance with this Scheme shall take
effect from the Appointed Date and shall be in accordance with Section 2 (1944), section
2{19AA4) and section 2{414) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, such that:

(a) all the properties of the Demerged Undertaking as on the Appointed Date shall be
transferred to and become the properties of the Resulting Company by virtue of this
Scheme;

(b) all the |iabilities relatable to the Demerged Undertaking, as on the Appointed Date
shall became the llabilities of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme;

fch the properties and the liabilities relatable to the Demerged Undertaking shall be

transferred to the Resulting Campany at the value appearing In the boaks of account
of the Demerged Company immedlately before this demerger;

P
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(d) the Resulting Company shall issue, in consideration of this demerger, its equity
shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date on a
proportionate basis;

(e) all the shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date shall become
the shareholders of the Resulting Company by virtue of this demerger; and

{fi the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking shall be on a going concern basis.

GENERAL
This Scheme s divided inta the following parts:

(a) Fart | of the Scheme deals with definitions and interpretations, and sets out the
share capital of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company;

(b) Part Il of the Scheme deals with the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from
the Demerged Company as a going concern and transfer to and vesting into the
Resulting Company; and

(e) Part Il of the Scheme deals with the general terms and conditions applicable to the
Scheme.

PARTI
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In this Scheme, unless Inconsistent with the subject or context, the following expressions
shall have the following meanings:

“Act” or “the Act” means the Companies Act, 1956 and any corresponding provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and including any statutory medifications or
re-enactment|s) thereof) and rules and regulations made thereunder,

“Applicable Law” means any applicable statute, notification, bye laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, rule of commen law, policy, code, directives, ordinance, orders or Instructions
having the force of law enacted or issued by any Appropriate Authority, including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereaf for the time being in force.

“Appointed Date” means opening business hours of 1 March 2017.

“Appropriate Authority” means any applicable central, state or local government, legislative
body, regulatery, administrative or statutory authority, agency or commission or
department or public or judiclal body or authority, including, but not limited, to Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges, Registrar of Companies, National Compary
Law Tribunal and the High Court.

"Board” in relation to the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, as the case may
be, means the board of directors of such company, and shall include a committee of
directors or any person authorized by the Board or such committee of directors duly
constituted and authorized for the purposes of matters pertaining to the arrangement as
contemplated under this Scheme and/or any other matter relating thereto.

“BSE" means the BSE Limited.



“Demerged Company” means Orient Paper and Industries Limited, & public company,
limited by shares, incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1913, under
Corporate |dentity Mo L210110R1936PLCO00117 and having Its registered office at Unit —
Vill, Flot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India.

"Demerged Undertaking” means all the business, undertakings, properties, Investments and
liabilities of whatsoever nature and kind and where so ever situated, of the Demerged
Company, in relation to and pertaining to the Consumer Electric Business on a going concern
basis, 35 on the Appointed Date, together with all its assets and liabilities and shall include
(without limitation):

a)

b)

cl

all the movable and jmmovable properties, tangible or intangible, including all
computears and accessories, software, applications and related data, equity shares,
preference shares and other securities of associate / subsidiary / joint venture
companies |excluding investment in equity shares of the Resulting Company), plant
and machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, stocks and inventory,
leasehold assets and other properties, real, corporeal and incorporeal, in possession
or reversion, present and contingent assets (whether tangible or intangible) of
whatseever nature, assets including cash In hand, amounts lying in the banks,
investments, escrow accounts, claims, powers, authorities, allotments, approvals,
consents, letters of intert, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements,
rights, credits, titles, interests, benefits, advantages, freehold, leasehold rights,
brands, sub-letting tenancy rights, with or without the consent of the landlord as
may be required by Applicable Law, goodwill, other intangibles, industrial and other
licenses, approvals, permits, authorisations, trademarks, trade names, patents,
patent rights, copyrights, and other industrial and intellectual properties and rights
of any nature whatsoever Including know-how, websites, portals, domain names, or
any applications for the above, assignments and grants in respect thereof, import
quotas and other gquota rights, right to use and avail of telephones, telex, facsimile,
emall, internet, leased lines and other communication facilities, connectlons,
installations and equipment, utilities, electricity and electronic and all other services
of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, provisions, funds, and benefits
{including all work-in progress), of all agreements, arrangements, deposits,
advances, recoverable and  receivables, whether from pgovernment,
semi-government, local authorities or any other persan Including customers,
contractors or other counter parties, etc., all earnest monies and/or deposits,
privileges, liberties, easements, advantages, benefits, exemptions, llcenses,
privileges and approvals of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated, belonging
to or in the ownership, power or pessession or control of or vested in or granted in
favour of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company In relation to the Consumer Electric
Business as on the Appointed Date;

all receivables, loans and advances, including accrued Interest thereon, all advance
payments, earnest monies and/or security deposits, payment against warrants, if
any, or ather entitlements of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Consumear
Electric Business as on the Appointed Date;

all employees of the Demerged Company engaged in or in relation to the Consumer
Electric Business along with all benefits under employment Including gratuity,
superannuation, pension benefits and the provident fund or other compensation ar
benefits of such employees;

7



d) all the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations including contingent liabilities of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Consumer Flactric Business as on the
Appointed Date; and

a) all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, records of
standard operating procedures, computer programs along with their licenses,
drawings, manuals, data, catalogues, guotations, sales and advertising materials,
lists of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit information,
customer pricing information and other records whether in physical or electronic
form, in connection with or relating to the Consumer Electric Business of the
Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date,

Any guestion that may arise as to whether a specific asset (tangible or intangible) or any
liability pertains or does not pertain to the Consumer Electric Business or whether it arises
out of the activities or operations of the Consumer Electric Business or not, shall be decided
by the Board of the Demerged Company or any cammittee thereof.

“Effective Date” means opening of business hours of the last of the dates an which the
conditions specified in Clause 17.1 and 17.2 are complied with.

“High Court” means the Hon'ble High Court of Orissa at Cuttack, having jurisdiction in
relation to the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, In the event that the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to scheme(s) of arrangement(s) become
applicable and effective for the purposes of this Scheme, all references to the High Court in
this Scheme shall be deemed to include reference to the National Company Law Tribunal,

“NSE" means the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

“Parties” means the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, callectively, as the
case may be.

“Party” means the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company, individually.

“Record Date" shall be the date to be fixed by the Board of the Demerged Company in
consultation with the Resulting Company, for the purpose of determining the equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company for issue of New Equity Shares (as defined in Clause
8.1 below), pursuant to this Schame,

“Remaining Undertaking” means all the undertakings, businesses, activities and operations
of the Demerged Company other than those comprised in the Demerged Undertaking.

“Resulting Company” means Orient Electric Limited, a public company, limited by shares,
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, under Caorporate |dentity No
U311000RZ016PLCO25892 and having its registered office at Unit — VI, Plot No. 7,
Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar, Cuttack — 751012, Odisha, India.

“Scheme” or "the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this scheme of arrangement in its
present form submitted to the High Court or any ather Appropriate Authority in the relevant
jurisdiction with any modification{s) thereof made under Clause 14 of the Scheme or as
directed by the High Court or any other Appropriate Autharity and accepted by the Parties.

“SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

bl |
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“SEBI Circular” shall mean the circular issued by the SEBI, belng Circular
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, and any amendments thereaf,

"Stock Exchanges” means BSE and NSE, as may be applicable.

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, Income-tax Act, 1961 and other Applicable Laws,
rules, regulations, bye laws, as the case may be, Including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof from time to time.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise reguires:
1.2.1  words denoting singular shall include plural and vice versa;

1.2.2  any reference to any Section of Companies Act, 19586, If so required and applicable,
would mean corresponding Section of Companies Act, 2013;

1.23 headings and bold typeface are only for convenience and shall be ignored for the
purposes of interpretation;

124  references to the word “include” or “including” shall be construed without
limitation:

1.25 a reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph is, unless indicated to the
contrary, a reference to an article, clause, section or paragraph of this Scheme,

1.2.6 references to dates and times shall be construed to be references to Indian dates
and times;

1.2.7 reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or replacement
or novatian of, that document;

1.28 reference to any law or legislation or regulation shall include amendment(s),
circulars, notifications, clarifications or supplement(s) to, or replacement or
amendment of, that law or legislation or regulation;

1.2.8 reference in this Scheme to the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme or
effectivenass of this Scheme” shall mean references to the Effective Date;

1.2.10 word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in the Scheme will have the meaning(s)
respectively ascribed to them; and

1.2.11 references to a person include any individual, firm, body corporate (whether
incorporated), government, state or agency of a state or any joint venture,
association, partnership, works council or employee representatives' body (whether
or not having separate legal personality].

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s] approved or
imposed or directed by the High Court, shall be effective from the Appointed Date but shall
be operative from the Effective Date.
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3.2

4.1

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Demerged Company as on September 30, 2016 s as under:

{Authorised Share Capital Amount (Rs)

75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 75,00,00,000

25,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 25,00,00,000
Total 100,00,00,000

Issued Share Capital

120,48, 87 970-Equity Shares of Re 1 each 20,48 87,970
Total 20,48,87,970

{Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Share Capital

20,48, 68,760-Equity Shares of Re 1 sach, fully paid up 20,48 68,760

Add: Forfeited shares (Amount originally paid-up) 9,605
Total 20,48,78,365

The equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on BSE and NSE. The Demerged
Company Is in the process of issuing shares to its shareholders on rights basis. Accordingly,
the share capital of the Demerged Company may underge a change.

The share capital of the Resulting Company as on 15 October, 2016 is as under:

Authorised Share Capital | Amount (Rs)

5,00,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital

5,000,000 Equity Shares of Re 1 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000

The equity shares of the Resulting Company are nat listed on any stock exchange in India.
The entire share capital of the Resulting Company as on 15 October 2016 is held by the
Demerged Company and hence the Resulting Company s a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Demerged Company.

PART Il
DEMERGER OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING
TRANSFER OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

With effect from the Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions of this Scheme In
refation to the mode of transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking, the Demerged
Undertaking shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to
and vested in, and/or be deemed to have been and stand transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company on a going cancern basis, so as to become on and from the Appointed
Date, the estate, assets, rights, title, Interest and authorities of the Resulting Company,
pursuant to Section 394(2) of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act
and In accordance with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961



4.2

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 4,1 above, an and from the Appointed Date:

4.2.1

422

4.2.3

the Demerged Undertaking including all its assets, properties, Investments,
shareholding interests in other companies, claims, title, interest, assets of
whatsoever nature such as licenses and all other rights, title, Interest, contracts or
powers of every kind, nature and description of whatsoever nature and wheresoever
situated shall, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 and other applicable
provisions, If any, of the Act, and pursuant to the order of the High Court sanctioning
this Scheme and without further act or deed or instrument, but subject to the
charges affecting the same as on the Appalinted Date, be and stand transferred to
and vested in the Resulting Campany as a going concern,

without prejudice to the generality of Clause 4.1 above, with respect to the assets
forming part of the Demerged Undertaking that are movable in nature or are
otherwise capable of being transferred by marnual delivery or by paying over or
endorsement and/or delivery, the same may be so transferred by the Demerged
Company without any further act or execution of an Instrument with the intent of
vesting such assets with the Resulting Company.

without prejudice to the aforesaid, the Demerged Undertaking, including all
immoveable property, whether or not included in the books of the Demerged
Company, whether freehold or leasehold (including but not limited to land,
buildings, sites and Immovable properties and any other document of title, rights,
interest and easements in relation thereto) of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand
transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, without any act or deed to
be done or executed by the Demerged Company and/or the Rasulting Company. For
the purpase of giving effect to the vesting arder passed under Section 394 of the Act
In respect of this Scheme, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to exercise all
rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all its
obligations, in relation to or applicable to all such immovable properties, Including
mutation and/or substitution of the ownership or the title to, or interest in the
immovable properties which shall be made and duly recorded by the Appropriate
Authority(ies) In Favour of the Resulting Company pursuant to the sanction of the
Scheme by the High Court and upan the effectiveness of this Scheme In accordance
with the terms hereof without any further act or deed to be done or executed by the
Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company, It Is clarified that the Resulting
Company shall be entitled to engage in such correspondence and make such
representations, as may be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation
and/or substitution.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, from the Appointed Date and until
the owned property, leasehold property and related rights thereto, license /right to
use the immovable property, tenancy rights, liberties and special status are
transferred, vested, recorded effected and or perfected, in the recard of the
Appropriate Authority, In favour of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company
Is deemed to be authorized to carry on business In the name and style of the
Demerged Company under the relevant agreement, deed, lease and/for license, as
the case may be, and the Resulting Company shall keep a record and/or account of
such transactions.
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4.2.4

425

4.2.6

.27

4.2.8

with respect to the assets of the Demerged Undertaking other than those referred
to in Clause 4.2.2 above, whether ar not the same is held in the name of the
Demerged Company, the same shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
transferred to and vested In and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in
the Resulting Company on the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Section
394 of the Act. All the rights, title and interests of the Demerged Company in any
leasehold properties in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall, pursuant to
Sectlon 394(2) of the Act and the provisions of this Scheme, without any further act
or deed, be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to
and vested in the Resulting Company. With regard to the licenses of the properties,
the Resulting Company will enter into novation agreements, If it is so reguired. The
execution of such documents shall form an integral part of the Scheme.

the consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, authorisations (including for the
operation of bank accounts), powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in
favour of the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, and the
rights and benefits under the same shall, and all quality certifications and approvals,
trademarks, brands, patents and domain names, copyrights, industrial designs, trade
secrets, trade formulae, and other Intellectual property and all other |nterests
relating to the goods or services being dealt with by the Demerged Company In
relation to the Demerged Undertaking, be transferred to, and vest in, the Resulting
Company.

subject to the other provisions of the Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds,
agreements and other instruments of whatsoever nature, in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, to which the Demerged Company Is a party subsisting or
having effect on or immediately before the Appointed Date shall remain In full farce
and effect against or in favour of the Resulting Company and shall be binding on and
be enfarceable by and against the Resulting Company as fully and effectually as if
the Resulting Company had at all material times been a party thereto. The Resulting
Company will, if required, enter into a novation agreement in relatlon te such
contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments as stated above.

without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the
fact that vesting of the Demerged Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme, the
Resulting Company may, at any time on or after the Appointed Date, In accordance
with the provisions hereof, if so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise,
take such actions and execute such deeds (inducing deeds of adherence),
confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any
contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings
as may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme.
The Resulting Company shall under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be
authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged Company to
carry out or perform all such farmalities or compliances réferred to above on the
part of the Demerged Company,

in so far as the various incentives, tax exemption and benefits, tax credits, subsidies,
grants, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any
Appropriate Authority, or avalled of by the Demerged Company, in relation to or In
connection with the Demerged Undertaking as on the Appointed Date are
concerned, Including Intome tax deductions, recognitions and exemptions
{including, but not limited to payments / write off by the Resulting Company out
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4.2.10

4211

of Transferred Liabilities under section 438 of the |ncome-tax Act, 1961, payments /
write offs by the Resulting Company out of Transferred Provisions, amount under
section 36{1)(vii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 out of the debts being transferred,
unamortised amount under section 35004 of the Income-tax Act, 1961, both under
normal provisions and under section 115)8 of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the same
shall, without any further act or deed, vest with and be available to the Resuiting
Company on the same terms and conditions on and from the Appointed Date.

as per the provisions of Section 72A(4]) and other applicable provizsions of the
Income- tax Act, 1961, all accumulated tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation of
the Demerged Company shall be apportioned amongst the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company, in the ratio of assets retained by the Demerged Company
and transferred to the Resulting Company;

all debts, liabiiities, loans raised and used, obligations incurred, duties of any kind,
nature or description {including contingent liahilities which arise out of the activities
or operations of the Demerged Undertaking) of the Demerged Company as on the
Appointed Date and relatable to the Demerged Undertaking ("Transferred
Liabilities") shall, without any further act or deed, be and stand transferred to and
be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company to the extent that they are
outstanding as on the Appolnted Date and shall become the debts, liabilities, loans,
obligations and duties of the Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and
satisfy the same. The term “Transferred Liabilities" shall include:

4.2,10.1 the labllities which arise out of the activities or operations of the
Demerged Undertaking,

4.2.10,2 the specific loans or borrowings (including debentures raised, incurred
and utllized salely for the activities or operations of the Demerged
Undertaking); and

4,210.3 in cases other than those referred to in Clauses 4.2.10.1 or 4.2.10.2
above, so much of the amounts of general or muitipurpose barrowings, f
any, of the Demerged Company, as stand in the same proportion which
the value of the assets transferred pursuant to this Scheme bear to the
total value of the assets of the Demerged Company immediately prior to
the Appointed Date.

In so far as any encumbrance In respect of Transferred Liabilities s concerned, such
entumbrance shall, without any further act, Instrument ar deed being required be
modified and shall be extended to and shall operate anly over the assets comprised
in the Demerged Undertaking which may have been encumbered in respect of the
Transferred Liabilities as transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to this
Scheme. For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets
comprising the Remaining Undertaking are concerned, the encumbrance, if any,
over such assets relating to the Transferred Liabilities, without any further act,
instrument or deed belng required, be released and discharged from the obligations
and encumbrances relating to the same. Further, in so far as the assets comprised in
the Demerged Undertaking are concerned, the encumbrance over such assets
relating to any loans, borrowings or other debts which are not transferred to the
Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme and which shall continue with the
Demerged Company, shall without any further act or deed be released from such

1]
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encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such
liabilities;

any tax liabilities under Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, value added tax
laws, as applicable to any State in which the Demerged Company operates, Central
Sales Tax Act, 1956, any other State sales tax / value added tax laws, ar sérvice tax,
or corporation tax, income tax, or other Applicable Laws and regulations dealing
with taxes/ duties/ levies/cess (hereinafter in this Clause 4.2 referred to as “Tax
Laws”) to the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the Demerged
Company's accounts, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking,
made as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred
to the Resulting Company. Any surplus In the provision for taxation/ duties/ levies
account as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking will also be transferred to the account of and belong to the
Resulting Company.

any claims due to the Demerged Company from Its customers or otherwise and
which have not been received by the Demerged Company as on the dite
immediately preceding the Appointed Date as the case may be, in relation to or in
connection with the Demerged Undertaking, shall also belong to and be received by
the Resulting Company.

without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits including under Tax Laws,
to which the Demerged Company, In relation to or in cannection with the Demerged
Undertaking, |s entitled to In terms of the applicable Tax Laws, including, but not limited
to advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value, and deposits with any Appropriate
Authority or any third party/entity, shall be avallable to, and vest In, the Resulting
Company.,

all debentures, bonds, other debt securities and other instruments of like nature
(whether convertible into equity shares or not] including non-convertible
debentures jssued to/held by the Demerged Company, in relation to or in
connection with the Demerged Undertaking, shall upon coming into effect of this
Scheme pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 and other relevant
provisions of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed shall stand
transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in
the Resulting Company.

with respect to the investments made by the Demerged Company in shares, stocks,
bonds, warrants, units of mutual fund or any other securities, shareholding interests
in other companies, whether quoted or unguoted, by whatever name called,
forming part of the Demerged Undertaking, the same shall, withaut any further act,
instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested In and/or be deemed to be
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company on the Appointed Date pursuant
to the provisions of Section 394 of the Act.

It is hereby clarified that in case of any refunds, benefits, Incentives, grants,
subsidies etc, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, the
Demerged Company shall, if so required by the Resulting Company, issue notices in
such form as the Resulting Company may deem fit and proper stating that pursuant
to the High Court having sanctioned this Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the
Act, the relevant refund, benefit, incentive, grant, subsidies, be paid or made good
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of held an account of the Resulting Company, as the person entitled thereto, to the
end and intent that the right of the Demerged Company to recover ar reallse the
same, stands transferred to the Resulting Company and that appropriate entries
should be passed in thelr respective books to record the aforesald changes.

on and from the Appointed Date, and thereafter, the Resulting Company shall be
entitled to operate all bank accounts of the Demerged Company, in relation to or in
cannection with the Demerged Undertaking, and realize all monies and camplete
and enforce all pending contracts and transactions and to accept stock returns and
issue credit notes in respect of the Demerged Company, In relation to or In
connection with the Demerged Undertaking, in the name of the Resulting Company
in sa far as may be necessary untll the transfer of rights and obligations of the
Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company under this Scheme have been
formally given effect to under such contracts and transactions.

far avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable
provisions of the Scheme, it Is clarified that with effect from the Appointed Date and
till such time that the name of the bank accounts of the Demerged Company, In
relation t¢ or In connection with the Demerged Undertaking, have been replaced
with that of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to
operate the bank accounts of the Demerged Company, in relation to or in
connection with the Demerged Undertaking, in the name of the Demerged Company
in so far as may be necessary. All chegues and other negotiable instruments,
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking,
after the Appeointed Date shall be accepted by the bankers of the Resulting Company
and credited to the account of the Resulting Company, if presented by the Resulting
Company. The Resulting Company shall be allowed to maintain bank accounts in the
name of the Demerged Company for such time as may be determined to be
necessary by the Resulting Company for presentation and depasition of cheques and
pay orders that have been issued in the name of the Demerged Company, in relation
to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking. It is hereby expressly clarified
that any legal proceedings by or against the Demerged Company, in relation to or In
connection with the Demerged Undertaking, in relation to the chegues and other
negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment
which are in the name of the Demerged Company shall be instituted, or as the case
maybe, continued by or against the Resulting Company after the Effective Date.

without prejudice to the provisions of the foregolng clauses of this Clause 4.2, and
upon the effectiveness of this Scheme, the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company shall execute any and all Instruments 6r documents and do all the acts and
deeds as may be reauired, including Ffiling of necessary particulars and/or
modification|s) of charge, with the Reglstrar of Companies, Ddisha at Cuttack to give
formal effect to the abave provisions.

the Resulting Campany shall be entitled to get credit/claim refund regarding any tax paid
(including advance tax} and/or tax deduction at source certificates, pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking. It is specifically provided that it Demerged Company or their
successor(s) receives any refunds / credit / claims or incurs any liability in respect of
the Damerged Undertaking, the same shall be on behalf of and as a trustee of
Resulting Company and the same shall be refunded to / paid by the Resulting
Company.
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PERMITS, CONSENTS AND LICENSES

All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, rights, claims, leases,
tenancy rights, liberties, allotments, insurance cover, clearances, authorities, privileges,
affiliations, easemeants, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges
enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of by and all rights and benefits that have
accrued to the Demerged Company, in relation to or In connection with the Demerged
Undertaking, pursuant to the provisions of Sectian 394(2) of the Act, shall without any
further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vest in or be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in and be available to the Resulting Company so as to become as
and from the Appointed Date, the estates, assets, rights, title, interasts and authorities of
the Resulting Company and shall remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms
and conditions to the extent permissible in Applicable Law.

Upon the Appointed Date and until the licenses, permits, guotas, approvals, incentives,
subsidies, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, rehabllitation schemes, special
status are transferred, vested, recorded, effected, and/or perfected, in the record of the
Appropriate Authority, in favor of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company is
authorized to carry on business in the name and style of the Demerged Company, in relation
to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, and under the relevant license and or
permit and / or approval, as the tase may be, and the Resulting Company shall keep a record
and/or account of such trapsactions.

EMPLDYEES

Upon the effectiveness of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Resulting Company undertakes to engage all the employees of the Demerged Company,
engaged in ar in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, on the same terms and conditions
on which they are engaged by the Demerged Company without any Interruption of service
as a result of transfer of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company. The Resulting
Company agrees that the services of all such employees with the Demerged Company priar
to the demerger shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to which the said
employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment
compensation, gratulty and other terminal benefits and to this effect the accumulated
balances, if any, standing to the credit of the employees in the existing provident fund,
gratity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members will be transferred to
such provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by the Resulting
Company and/or such new provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be
established and caused to be recognized by the Appropriate Authorities, by the Resulting
Company, or to the government provident fund in relation to the employees of the
Demerged Company who are not eliglble to become members of the provident fund
maintained by the Resulting Company. In refation to those employees who are not covered
under the provident fund trust of the Resulting Company, and for whom the Demerged
Company is making contributions to the government provident fund, the Resulting Compary
shall stand substituted for the Demerged Company, for all purposes whatsoever, including
relating to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund in accordance with the
provisions of such fund, bye laws, etc. in respect of such employees.

Pending the transfer as aforesald, the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation
fund dues of the employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing provident
fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company.
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The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking under the Scheme and the
continuance of the Proceedings by or against the Resulting Company under Clause 7 below
shall not affect any transaction or proceeding already completed by the Demerged Compary
relating to the Demerged Undertaking till the Appointed Date to the end and intent that the
Resulting Company accepts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by andfor an
behalf of the Demerged Company as acts, deeds and things done and executed by and on
behalf of the Resulting Campany.

FROCEEDINGS

If any sult, cause of actions, appeal or other legal, taxation, guasi-judicial, arbitral,
administrative, or other proceedings of whatever nature, under any Applicable Law
(herelnafter referred to as the “Proceedings”) by or against the Demerged Company be
pending, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, on the Appointed
Date, the same shall not abate, be discontinued or be in anyway prejudicially affected by
reason of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking or of anything contained in
the Scheme, but such Proceedings may be continued, prosecuted, defended and enforced by
or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or
might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Demerged Company
as If the Scheme had not been made. On and from the Appointed Date, the Resulting
Company may Initiate any Proceedings for and on behalf of the Demerged Company for
matters relating to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking. The Resulting
Company shall have/all Proceedings initiated by or against the Demerged Company with
respect to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred into its name and to have the same
cantinued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company to the exclusion of
the Demerged Company.

CONSIDERATION

Upon the effectiveness of this Scheme and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the
Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company pursuant to provisions of this Scheme,
the Resulting Company shall, without any further act or deed, issue and allot 1o each
shareholder of the Demerged Company, whose name Is recorded In the register of members
and records of the depository as members of the Demerged Company, on the Record Date, 1
{one) equity shares of Re 1 (Indian Rupee one) each of Resulting Company credited as fully
pald up for every 1 (one) equity share of Re 1 (Indian Rupee One) each held by such
shareholder in the Demerged Company ("New Equity Shares”). The ratio in which equity
shares of the Resulting Company are to be issued and allotted to the sharehalders of the
Demerged Company Is referred to as the "Share Entitlement Ratio”.

The New Equity Shares to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 8.1 above shall be
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation of the Resulting
Company and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the
Resulting Company after the Record Date Including with respect to dividend, bonus
entitlement, rights shares' entitlement, voting rights and other corporate benefits,

In case any shareholder's shareholding in the Demerged Company Is such that such
shareholder becomes entitled to a fraction of an equity share of the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall not issue fractional share certificate to such shareholder but shall
consolidate such fractions and ssue and allot the consolidated shares directly to a trustee
nominated by the Board of the Resulting Company in that behalf, who shall sell such shares
in the market at such price or prices and on such time gr times as the trustee may In its sole
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discretion decide and on such sale, shall pay to the Resulting Company, the net sale
proceeds (after deduction of applicable taxes and other expenses incurred), whersupon the
Resulting Company shall, subject to withholding tax, if any, distribute such sale proceeds to
the concerned shareholders of the Demerged Company in propartion to their respective
fractional entitlements;

The New Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to Clause 8.1 above shall be issued In
dematerialized form by the Resulting Company, unless otherwise notified in writing by the
shareholders of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company on or before such date as
may be determined by the Board of the Demerged Company. In the event that such notice
has not been received by the Resulting Cormpany in respect of any of the shareholders of the
Demerged Company, the New Equity Shares shall be issued to such shareholders in
dematerialized form provided that the shareholders of the Resulting Company shall be
required to have an account with a depository participant and shall be required to provide
details thereof and such other confirmations as may be required. In the event that the
Resulting Company has received natice from any shareholder that New Eguity Shares are to
be issued in physical form or If any shareholder has not provided the requisite details
relating to his/hers/its account with a depository participant ar other confirmations as may
be required or If the details furnished by any shareholder do not permit electronic credit of
the shares of the Resulting Campany, then the Resulting Company shall issue New Equity
Shares in physical form to such shareholder ar shareholders,

The New Equity Shares ssued and/ or allotted pursuant to Clause 8.1, In respect of such of
the equity shares of the Demerged Company which are held in abeyance under the
provisions of Section 126 of the Act shall, pending settlement of dispute by order of court or
otherwise, be held in abeyance by the Resulting Company,

The Mew Equity Shares issued pursuant to Clause 8.1, which the Resulting Company Is
unable to allot due to Applicable Laws {including, without limitation, the failure to receive
approvals of an Appropriate Authority as required under Applicable Law) or any regulations
or otherwise shall, pending allotment, be held in abeyance by Resulting Company and shall
be dealt with in the manner as may be permissible under the Applicable Law and deemed fit
by the Board of the Resulting Company Including to enable allotment and sale of such New
Equity Shares to 2 trustee as mentioned in Clause 8.3 above and thereafter make
distributions of the net sales proceeds in lleu thereof (after the deduction of taxes and
expenses incurred) to the eligible shareholders of the Demerged Company, in propeortion to
their entitlements as per the process specified in Clause 8.3 above. If the above cannot be
effected for any reason, the Resulting Company shall ensure that this does not delay
implementation of the Scheme; and shall, take all such appropriate actions as may be
necessary under Applicable Laws. The Resulting Company and / or the Depository shall enter
into such further documents and take such further actions as may be necessary or
appropriate in this regard and to enable actions contemplated therein.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or cutstanding, of
any shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Board of the Demerged Company shall be
empowered prior to or even subsequent to the Recard Date, to effectuate such transfers in
the Demerged Company as if such changes in registered holders were operative as on the
Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferors of the shares in
relation to the shares issued by the Resulting Company after this Scheme comes into effect.
The Board of the Demerged Company shall be empowered to remove such difficulties that
may arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and registration of new
shareholders in the Resulting Company on account of difficulties faced in the transition
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The Issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares in terms of this Scheme shall be deemed
to have been carried out as if the procedure laid down under section 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of the Act have been complied with.

The Resulting Company shall apply for listing of its equity shares including those issued in
terms of Clause 8.1 above on BSE and N5E in terms of and in compliance of the 5EBI Circular,

The New Equity Shares allotted by the Resulting Company pursuant to the Scheme shall
remain frozen in the depositories systems il listing/trading permission is given by the
designated stock exchange.

In the event that the Parties restructure their equity share capital by way of share split /
consolidation / issue of bonus shares / Issue of shares on rights basis during the pendency of
the Scheme, the Share Entitlement Ratio shall be adjusted accardingly to take inte account
the effect of any such corporate actions.

There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Resulting Company between the
Record Date and the listing which may affect the basis on which approval is recelved from
the Stock Exchanges.

The New Equity Shares to be lssued in ffeu of the shares of the Demerged Company held In
the unclaimed suspense account shall be issued to a new unclaimed suspense account
created for shareholders of the Resulting Company.

DIVIDENDS

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall be entitled to declare and pay
dividends, whether interim or final, to their respective shareholders in respect of the
aceounting period prior to the Effective Date but only consistent with the past practice, or in
the ordinary course.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, on and from the Appointed Date, the profits of the
Demerged Undertaking shall belong to and be the profits of the Resulting Company and will
be available to Resulting Company for being disposed of In any manner as it thinks fit.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabling
provisions enly and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any member of Demerged
Company and/or the Resulting Company to demand or claim any dividends which, subject to
the provisions of the Act, shall be entlrely at the discretion of the Boards of Demerged
Company and Resulting Company respectively, subject to such approval of the shareholders,
as may be required.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE
RESULTING COMPANY

Accounting treatment in the books of the Demerged Company

Upon the effectiveness of this Scheme, In accordance with the applicable accounting
standards, Campanies Act, 2013 and generally accepted accounting principles in India:
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10.1.1 The value of all assets and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged undertaking which
cease to be assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company shall be reduced by the
Dermergad Company at their carrying values; and

10.1.2 The difference lLe. the excess or shortfall, as the case may be, of the value of
transferred assets over the transferred liabilities pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking and demerged from the Demerged Company pursuant to the Scheme
shall be adjusted to the reserves of the Demerged Company.

Accounting treatment in the books of the Resulting Company
Upan the effectiveness of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date;

10.2.1 the Resulting Company shall record transferred assets and liabilities pertaining to
the Demerged Undertaking at the respective carrying values as appearing in the
books of Demerged Company;

10.22 the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company as per Clause 8 of this Scheme. These shares shall be issued and recorded
at face value and accordingly the aggregate face value of the shares to be issued
shall be credited to the Resulting Company's share capital account; and

10.2.3 the difference, if any, between the book value of assets and book value of liabliities
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, after adjusting the amount credited as
share capital as per Clause 10.2.7 above, shall be taken to reserves.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY THE DEMERGED COMPANY PERTAINING TO DEMERGED
UNDERTAKING UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE

Till the Effective Date, the Demerged Company undertakes to carry on the business and
activities of the Demerged Undertaking with reasonable diligence, business prudence and
shall not except In the ordinary course of business ar without prior written consent of the
Resulting Company or as provided in this Scheme, alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or
atherwise deal with or dispose any business or part thereaf.

REMAINING UNDERTAKING

The Remaining Undertaking and all the assets, liabilities and obligations pertaining thereto
shall continue to belong to and remain vested In and be managed by the Demerged
Company.

All proceedings by or against the Demerged Compary under any statute, whether pending
on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted at any time thereafter, and relating to the
Remaining Undertaking of the Demerged Company (including those relating to any property,
right, power, liability, obligation or duties of the Demerged Company In respect of the
Remaining Undertaking) shall be cantinued and enforced against the Demerged Company.

If proceedings are taken against the Resulting Company in respect of matters referred to in
Clause 12.2 above relating to the Remaining Undertaking, it shall defend the same in
accordance with the advice of the Demerged Company and at the cost of the Demerged
Company, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify the Resulting Campany, against all
liabilities and obligations incurred by the Resulting Company in respect thereof,
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If proceedings are taken against the Demerged Company In respect of matters referred to in
Clause 12.2 above relating to the Demerged Undertaking, it shall defend the same in
accordance with the advice of the Resulting Company and at the cost of the Resulting
Company, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify the Demerged Company, against all
liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company in respect thereof.

PART 1l
GENERAL PROVISIONS
APPLICATIONS / PETITIONS TO THE HIGH COURT AND APPROVALS

The Parties shall dispatch, make and file all applications and petitions under Sections 391 to
394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable provisions of the Act before the High
Court, for sanction of this Scheme under the provisions of Applicable Law,

The Parties shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any
Appropriate Authority, if required, under any Applicable Law for such consents and
approvals which the Demerged Company / Resulting Company may require to own the
assets and/ or liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking and to carry on the business of the
Demerged Undertaking.

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Resulting
Company will automatically stand Increased to INR 25,00,00,000 [Rupaes Twenty five crore)
by simply filing the requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority and no separate
procedure or Instrument or deed or payment of any stamp duty and registration fees shall
be required to be followed under the Act.

Ennséquenti',r, the Memarandum of Association of the Resulting Company shall without any
act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections
13 and 61 of the Companies Act 2013 and Section 394 and ather applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013, as the case may be, and be replaced by the
following clause:

“The Authorised Shore Capital of the Company is Rs 25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty
five crore) divided into 25,00,00,000 (Twenty five crore) Equity Shares of Re 1/~
{Rupee one anly) each with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company
or to divide the shares fn the capital for the time being Into several classes and to
attoch thereto respectively any preferentiol, deferred, guulified or special rights,
privileges or condition as may be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of
the Caompany and to vory, modify or obrogote any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may be for the time belng provided by the Articles of
the Company and the legislative provisions for the time being In force.”,

It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resuiting Company to this Scheme
shall be deemed to be their consent/ approval also to the consequential alteration of the
Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company shall not
be reguired to seek separate consent/ approval of its shareholders for such alteration of the
Memorandum of Assoclation as required under Sections 13, 14, 61, 62 and 64 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
applicable provision of the Companies Act, 1956,
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REDUCTION AND REORGANIZATION OF THE SHARE CAPITAL OF ORIENT ELECTRIC LIMITED

Simultaneously with the issue and allotment of the new equity shares by the Resulting
Company to the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company in accordance with Clause
8.1 of this Scheme, in the books of the Resulting Company, all the equity shares issued by
the Resulting Company to the Demerged Campany shall stand cancelled, extinguished and
annulled on and from the Effective Date which shall be regarded as reduction of share
capital. The order of the High Court sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order
under section 102 of the Act confirming the reduction.

The consent of the shareholders of the Resulting Company to this Scheme shall be deemed
to be the consent of its shareholders for the purposes of effecting the above reduction, if
any, under provisions of Section 100 to 103 of the Act, and no further resolution under
Section 100 to 103 of the Act or any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be
required to be separately passed.

MODIFICATIONS / AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, through their respective Boards, acting
collectively, in their full and absolute discretion, may make and/or consent to any
madifications / amendments to the Scheme or to any conditions or limitations:

16.1.1 which they may deem fit; or

16.1.2 which the High Court, Stock Exchange(s), SEBI and any other Appropriate Authority
may deem fit to suggest / impose [ direct; or

16.1.3 effect any other modification or amendmaent which the High Court may deem fit;

and give such directions as they may consider necessary or desirable for settling any
guestion, doubt or difficulty arising under the Scheme, whether by reason of any directive or
orders of any other authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue
of the Scheme and/or any matter concerned or connected therewith or In regard to its
Implementation or in any matter connected therewith (including any gquestion, doubt or
difficulty arising in connection with any deceased or Insolvent shareholder of the Demerged
Company or the Resulting Company, as the case may be) and to do all acts, deeds and things
as may be necessary, desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme Into effect.

For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modifications or amendments
thereof or additions thereto, the authorised person of the Demerged Company and/or the
Resulting Company may give and are hereby autherized to determine and give all such
directions as are necessary including directions for settling or removing any guestion of
doubt or difficulty that may arise and such determination or directions, as the case may be,
shall be binding on all Parties, in the same manner as if the same were specifically
incorporated in this Scheme.

If, upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the transfer and vesting of the assets and
liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company and pursuant ta the
provisions of Applicable Law, the Resulting Company is not permitted under the Applicable
Law to carry on the certain business or hold assets, licenses, etc, transferred and vested
pursuant to this Scheme, the Board of the Resulting Company shall be permitted and/or
entitled to divest such business or assets, licences, ete, in the manner as it may be deamed
appropriate.
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CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
This Scheme 15 conditional on and subject to:

17.1.1 the sanction or approval of the Appropriate Authorities and other sanctions and
approvals (as may be reguired by Applicable Law) In respect of this Scheme being
obtained in respect of any of the matters in respect of which such sanction or
approval is required or on the expiry of any statutory time period pursuant to which
such approval is deemed to have been granted; and

17.1.2 certified/authenticated copy of the arder of the High Court, sanctioning the Scheme,
being filed with the Registrar of Companies, Odisha by the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company in relation to this Scheme.

DOther conditions precedent for this Scheme:

17.2.1 approval of the Scheme by the reguisite majority of each class of shareholders /
creditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or as may be
required under the Act and as may be directed by the High Court; and

17.2.2 the sanction and order of High Court, under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 being obtained by the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

It is hereby clarified that submission of the Scheme to the High Court; and to Appropriate
Authorities for their respective approvals is without prejudice to all rights, interests, titles or
defences that the Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company may have under or
pursuant toall appropriate and Applicable Law,

On the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, such shareholders shall also be deemed to have resolved and accorded
all relevant consents under the Act or otherwlse to the same extent applicable in relation to
the demerger, as the case may be, set out in this Scheme, related matters and this Scheme
itselt.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS AND MATTERS RELATING TO REVOCATION f
WITHDRAWAL OF THE SCHEME

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals not being obtained and/or the
Scheme not being sanctioned by the High Court, and/or the arder or orders not being passed
as aforesaid on or before 31 December 2017 or within such further period or periods as may
be agreed upon between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company through their
respective Boards, the Scheme shall become null and void and each Party shall bear and pay
its respective costs, charges and expenses for and/ar In connection with the Scheme,

The Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company acting through their respective
Boards shall each be at liberty to withdraw from this Scheme, (I} in case any condition or
alteration imposed by any Appropriate Authority / person is unacceptable to any of them or
{il) they are of the view that coming into effect of this Scheme could have adverze
implications on the respective companies.

In the event of revocation/withdrawal under Clauses 18,1 and 18.2 above, no rights and

liabilities whatseever shall acerue to or be incurred inter se the Demerged Company and/or
the Resulting Company or their respective shareholders or creditors ar employvees or any

di
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other person save and except In respect of any act or deed done prier thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued
pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as s
specifically provided in the Scheme or in accardance with the Applicable Law and in such
case, each Party shall bear its own costs, unless otherwise mutually agreed,

If any provision of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reascn whatsoever, the
same shall not, subject to the decision of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Campany through their respective Boards, affect the validity or implementation of the other
parts and/or provisions of this Scheme.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES
The Resulting company shall bear all costs, charges and expenses (including, but not limited

to, any taxes and duties, registration charges; etc.) arising out of or incurred In connection
with and In Implementing this scheme and matters incidental thereto,




(¢ cK BIRLA GROUP | ORIENT

PAPER

ORIENT PAPER & INDUSTRIES LTD.

CK BIRLA GROUP

.‘

Report on Recommendation of Share Entitlement Ratio on
Demerger of Consumer Electric Business of Orient Paper
& Industries Limited into Orient Electric Limited

October 2016

N D A & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants



N D A & Associlates

Chartered Accountants

Strictly Private and Confidential

October 17, 2016

Board of Directors Board of Directors
Orient Paper and Industries Limited Orient Electric Limited
9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road 91, R. N. Mukherjee Road
Kolkata — 700 001 Kaolkata - 700 001

Re: Report on Recommendation of Share Entitlement Ratio on Demerger of

Consumer Electric Business of Orient Paper & Industries Limited into Orient
Electric Limited.

Dear Sirs,

1.0 CONTEXT & PURPOSE

We refer to the engagement letter dated 20-09-2016 and the subsequent discussion we
had with you, wherein you have requested us to provide our recommendation of a fair
Share Entitlement Ratio of Equity Shares of the resultant company to be issued 1o the
shareholders of Orient Paper & Industries Limited (hereinafier referred to as “OPIL" or
the “Demerged Company™) pursuant to the proposed Scheme of Demerger of
Consumer Electric Business of OPIL. "Consumer Electric Business™ means the
undertaking of the Demerped Company carrving on the business of manufacture,
production, sale and distribution of Consumer Electricals.

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 OPIL is a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1913 and having its registered offiee at Unit - VIIL Plot No. 7.
Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India and has two primary business
segments, being the paper business and the consumer electric business,

The equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on BSE Limited and the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

2.2 Orent Elecinie Limited (hereinafter referred 1o as “Resulting Company™ or OEL) is a
company incorporated under the Companies Act. 2013 on 10" October, 2016 and
having its registered office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7. Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar -
751012, Odisha, India.

Offices at : New Delhi & Bangaluru
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3.0
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4.0
4.1

The equity shares of the Resulting Company are not listed on any stock exchange in

India. The entire share capital of the Resulting Company is held by the Demerged
Company,

We understand that the management of OPIL is contemplating a restructuring of its
business. Accordingly, it is proposed that the Consumer Electric Business of the

company be demerged into OEL. a newly incorporated wholly owned subsidiary of
OPIL.

The demerger is proposed to be effected through a scheme of Arrangement under
Sections 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 (to the extent applicable),

Tt will also be in accordance with Section 2 19AA) of the Income Tax Act. 1961,

Accordingly, the entire business of OPIL shall be restructured and the business activity
relating to the consumer electric business proposed 1o be demerged shall be transferred
to and vested with OEL. All the properties movable or immovable and assets of
whatever nature and kind relating to the business divisions under consideration for the
demerger, shall without any further act or deed be and stand transferred 1o and vested in
OEL and also the liabilities pertaining to the said division shall be assumed by OEL.

The Appointed Date of the proposed Demerger is 1* March 2017 and the Effective Date
shall be the date on which the last requisite sanctions, approvals or orders are obtained.
We understand that pursuant to the Scheme of Demerger, the existing shareholders of
OPIL are to receive shares in the equity share capital of the Resulting Company as
referred to in Clause 8,]of the Scheme of Arrangement. pursuant to demerger of the
Demerged Undertakings into the Resulting Company.

SCOPE OF WORK

In the context of the proposed demerger of Business Undertaking (as mentioned above)
of OPIL. you have approached us to assist in arriving at the Share Entitlement Ratio for
the purpose of issue of Equity Shares in OEL to the shareholders of OPIL as on the
Record Date to be fixed jointly by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company
and the Resulting Company.

Share Entitlement Ratio is the ratio in which equity shares of the Resulting Company
are to be issued and allotted to the shareholders of the Demerged Company

BASIS, ASSUMPTIONS & PROCEDURES

For the purpose of arriving a1 the Share Entitlement Ratio. the procedure used included
coliection and analysis of information and data and such other substantive Sleps Bs we

consider necessary under the circumstances, including but not necessarily limited to, the
tollowing:

¢ Discussions with the management of OPIL and OEL

* Study of financial and operating conditions and review of historical performance of
OPIL

*» Consideration of audited financial statements of OPIL for the financial years ended
on 31™ March 2016 and 31% March 2015 and the figures pertaining to the demerged
business and retained business as at and for the vear ended 31" March 2016
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5.0
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6.0
6.1

o Consideration of draft scheme of arrangement

= (Congideration of Memorandum and Anticles of Association of both the companies

+ Such other analysis, reviews and enquiries as warranted on the facts or requirements
DEMERGER OBJECTIVES

The objectives underlying the proposed demerger as communicated I:f the Management
are as under:

OPIL is engaged in 2 (two) distinet lines of business namely:

{a) manufacture and distribution of paper and paper products such as writing paper,
printing paper and tissuc paper (collectively referred 1w as the “Paper
Business™): and

(b) manufacture and distribution of consumer appliances such as fans. lighting

products, home appliances and switch gears (collectively referred 10 as the
“Consumer Electric Business™).

The nature of risk and competition involved in each of the Paper Business and
Consumer Electric Business is distinct, necessitating different management approaches
and foeus. Moreover, the competitive dynamics of these businesses are also different.

The management feels that separation of the Consumer Electric Business, by way of the

proposed Scheme from the Demerged Company would lead to significant benefits for
both businesses including:

(a) enable a dedicated management focus and to accelerate growth of the
Consumer Electric Business unlocking significant value for the sharcholders
of Orient Paper and Industries Limited: and

(b)  access o varied sources of funds for the rapid growth of both businesses.

The said demerger shall enable the Management to have focused business approach for
maximization of benefits to all stakeholders in future. It will also result in
administrative convenience and better contral through decentralization of authority as
the areas of work shall become specific.

The companies shall become separate responsibility centres as a resull of which the
advantage and disadvantage of any decision shall remain undiluted and shall give a
clear picture of the affairs of each activity thereby assisting in chalking out best possible
business strategy for each activity,

OUR APPROACH

We have considered the following to arrive a1 our recommendation of the share
entitlement ratio:

The issued, subseribed and paid up share eapital of OPIL as at 31.03.2016 is as under:
Issued — 20,48.87.970 Equity Shares of Re, 1/- each
Subscribed & fully paid-up - 20.48,68.760 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each

The Management has stated the Authorized Share Capital of OEL is Rs 500.000/-
divided into 500,000 equity shares of Re 1/- each. The issued, subscribed and paid up
share capital of OEL is 500,000 equity shares of Re. | each.

—
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6.2

6.3

6.4

Based on audited financial statements of OPIL for the financial year 2015-16. the share
of demerged business and the retained business is as under:

Rs in Crores
Particulars Consumer Paper Total
Electric Business Business
Net Sales 1301.83 518.53 1820.36
EBRIDTA 90.78 26.07 116.85
Profit before Tax 45.28 (-)23.93 21.35
Profit after Tax 21.02
Net worth 414.21
Capital Employed 425.99 439.08 865.07
Source - Management
We have also considered the dividend payout by OPIL for last 4 years. We have not
considered the FY 2011-12 since the financial results included operations of Cement
division, demerged from OPIL effective 1™ April 2012,
Financial Year  Profit after Tax  Dividend Dividend payout including
(Rs in Lacs) % Tax (Rs in Lacs)
2012-13 (+13223.49 10 239.69
2013-14 423.64 10 239.69
2014-13 (-) 2865.02 10 24583
2015-16 2102.08 25 t16.44
Source — Management
We have discussed the possibility of dividend payouts by OEL post demerger, with the
Management and they have indicated that they would like to keep a similar payout for
OEL as has been for OPIL. going forward.
Since OEL is a company with no other activity and all the shares. to be issued by it

pursuant to demerger, are to be issued to the shareholders of OPIL, in effect, no
different shareholder interest is to emerge. The principle to be considered is that the
shareholders proportionate holding is to remain same.

In the present analysis where the proposal is of restructuring of the existing diversified
activities into specific activities and that 100 when the set of shareholders is identical,
what is much relevant is not determination of the value of the shares of the companies
separately. but the determination of the total number of shares of resulting company to
be issued in exchange for / against existing shares of the company.

P - - :-EP-“'W.
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7.0
7.1

7.2

8.0
8.1

8.2

8.4

9.0
9.1

RECOMMENDATION

As stated in the paragraphs above, in the case of this type of de-merger, there is no
requirement for separate valuation of shares as the Resultant Company is currently a
| 00% subsidiary of the Demerged Company and all the existing shareholders of OPIL
will become shareholders of the Resulting Company. Upon allotment of equity shares
by the Resulting Company in the proposed Share Entitlement Ratio, the ultimate
beneficial economic interest of the existing sharcholders of OPIL in the equity of the
Resulting Company will be same as it is in the equity of OPIL.

Under these circumstances we recommend that based on and subject to various
assumptions and limitations set forth herewith. the share Entitlement Ratio of 1 (One)
equity share of Re. 1/- each of the Resultant Company as fully paid up for every I (one)
equity share of Re. 1/- cach Filly paid-up to the members of OPIL as on the Record
Date (to be decided by the Board of both the companies after approval of the proposed
scheme of arrangement) in consideration for the demerger is fair and reasonable.

Upon the scheme of demerger becoming effective, the initial issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital of the resulting company consisting of 500.000 equity shares of
Re. 1 each shall stand cancelled.

LIMITATIONS

Our recommendation is dependemt upon the information furnished to us by the
Management of OPIL and OEL which we believe to be reliable and complete in all
respeet. We do not assume any responsibility for the correctness or accuracy of the
audited financial statements since we have not carried out any sort of audit or review of
the same.

Our scope is limited to provide our recommendation on the propesed share entitlement
ratio. Therefore this report is not an opinion or certification of compliance of various
laws relating to proposed demerger.

We have not made any investigation or assume no responsibility in respect of the ntles
of the assets or liabilities of OPIL and disclosures made by the management have been
assumed to be valid,

It should be noted here that any exercise of the nature covered in this report is not a
precise science or mathematical exercise. Such exercise is always subjective and
dependent on individual judgement. While we have provided our recommendation on
the share entitlement ratio, others may have different opinion. Ultimately, the exercise
will leave matters open for final judgment of parties concerned.

DISTRIBUTION OF OUR REFORT

This Report is issued for the Board of Directors of OPIL and the Resulting Company,
This report is intended for sole use by the companies only in connection with the
proposed demerger including for the purpose of obtaining necessary approvals. This

report should not be distributed or used for any purpose, other than the proposed
demerger.
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We place on record of our sincere appreciation for the co-operation extended by the
management in course of this assignment,

Yours faithfully,

A bz

ND A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: D28709N)

Commerce House

Suite 4A, 5" Floor

2A Ganesh Chandra Avenue
Kolkata 700 013
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Ref; No. Inv Bk/CMG/AD/2016-17/147

Strictly Private & Confidential

Date: October 17, 2016

The Board of Directors

Orient Paper & Industries Limited
Birla Building

9/1 R. N. Mukherjee Road

Kolkata — 700 001

Dear Members of the Board:

Sumeenuee 3

IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Ltd,
formany ieown ol 1001 Captal Mare! Services Limdad)
Rogd. Offica:

Zrd Floos, Malatial Cantrs, Narman Paini,
Masmibal - 400 021,

Tol : #81-22-4322 1212

Fax: +81-22-2285 0785

Emalt: infodlidbieapital oom

CIM © UBSoeoMH 18E3G0I07S57E

Please find enclosed herewith, the Fairness Opinion as required pursuant to our Engagement Letter dated

October 07, 2016,

Yours truly,

For IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited

£

Mame: Monica Nagpal
Designation: 5r. Vice President

Enclosed: afa

{Wholly Owned Subsidiary of IDBI Bank Limited)




Y : IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Ltd.

3rd Floor, Mafasial Centre, Nariman Paint,
Mumizal - 400 021,

Tol: +81-22-4322 1212

Fax: +81-22-2285 0785

Email: infodidbicagpital.com

CiN : Ue5S00MH1993G0I075578

Strictly Private & Confidential

Date: October 17, 2016

The Board of Directors

Orlent Paper & Industries Limited
Birla Building

8/1 R, N. Mukherjee Road

Kalkata — 700 001

Dear Members of the Board:

Engagement Background

We understand that the Board of Directors of Orlent Paper & Industries Limited is considering the
demerger of “consumer electric division” of Orient Paper & Industries Limited (the “Demerged
Company” or "OPIL") intc a wholly owned subsidiary In the name of Orient Electric Limited (the
"Resulting Company”) through a Scheme of Arrangement under section 391-394 of the Companies Act,
1956 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 (to the extent applicable).

The scheme envisages demerger of the "consumer electric division” (the “Demerged Undertaking”) of
OPIL into Resulting Company as per terms and conditions more fully set forth in the scheme of
Arrangement to be placed before the Board of their approval.

Qrient Paper & Industries Limited has appointed NDA & Associates, Chartered Accountants (“NDA” or
the “Valuer”) to prepare a valuation report (“Valuation Report’) and recommend a fair Entitlement
ratio for distribution of equity shares of OPIL to the equity shareholders of Resulting Company. As per
the Valuation Report dated October 17, 2016, the Valuer has recommended that in consideration of the
demerger of the "consumer electric division” of Demerged Company into the Resulting Company
pursuant to the draft Scheme of Arrangement, for every 1 {one) equity share of the face value of Re. 1/-
each held by the shareholders of Demerged Compary, the Resulting Company shall issue and allot 1

(one) equity share of the face value of Re. 1/- each fully paid up (hereinafter referred to as the “Share
Entitlement Ratia”).

In connection with the aforesaid, you requested our Fairness Opinion (the "Opinion”) as of the date
hereof, as to the fairness of the Share Entitlement Ratio to the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged
Company. The scope of this Opinion includes commenting on the fairness of the Share Entitlement Ratio

Pagelals
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recommended by the Valuer and not on the faimess or the economic rationale of the Scheme of

Arrangement per se or the valuation methods used by the Valuer or the historical and projected
financial statements relied upon for the same by the Valuer.

This Opinion is addressed to the Board of Directors of OPIL Further, this Opinion is subject to the scope,
limitations, assumptions, exclusions and disclaimers detailed herein and in Appendix A and the same has
been issued as per the requirements of SEBI circular no. CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated February 4, 2013
read with SEBI circular no, CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated May 21, 2013 (collectively the “SEBI Circulars”), As
such the Dpinion is to be read In totality, not in parts and In conjunction with the relevant documents
referred to herein, This Opinion has been issued only for the purpose of facilitating the Scheme of
Arrangement in terms of the abovementioned SEBI Circulars and should not be used for any other
purpose.

Source of Information

In arriving at the Opinion set forth below, we have relled upon the accuracy and completeness of all
infarmation and documents provided to us by the Company and/or their other advisors, including:

1. Valuation Report dated October 17, 2016 prepared by the Valuer (a draft was shared with us
before issuance of the final Valuation Report)
tMemorandum B Articles of Association of OPIL & Resulting Company
3. The Draft Scheme of Arrangement prepared by M/s Khaltan & Co; which inter alia provides for:
8. The consumer electric business of the Demerged Company will be treansferred to the
Resulting Company.
Resulting Company Is a 100% subsidiary of OPIL.
c. On the record date, all sharehclders of the Demerged Company will be entitled to
receive shares jn the Resulting Company.
d. The Resulting Company will issue one equity share for every one equity share held by
the shareholders of OPIL
e. 0Onand from the Effective Date, all the equity shares issued by the Resulting Company to
the Demerged Company shall stand cancelied,
f. OPIL will retain all the undertakings, business and activities which are not exclusively
relatad to or utllized by the consumer electric business.
4. The current shareholding pattern of OPIL
5. Audited Annual Accounts of OPIL for the financial years 2014-15 and 2015-16 as provided to us
by the management of OPIL and limited review financial information for September 30, 2016
6. Other information, explanations and representations provided by the management of OPIL
and/ar its other advisors

L
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Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the contents of this document (including the Appendix A), our work as
described herein, to the best of our knowiedge and belief, we are of the opinion that, as of the date
hereof, the Share Entitlement Ratio, as recommended by NDA, Is fair in relation to the proposed draft
Scheme of Arrangement, from a financial point of view.

Yours truly,

For IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited

Narmie: Monica Nagpal
Designation: Sr. Vice President

Page 3 of 6
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APPENDIX A
Scope Limitations and Disclosures

in rendering our Opinion, we have assumed and relied, without independent verification, upon the accuracy
and completeness of all financial and other Information and data whether publicly available or provided to or
otherwise reviewed by or discussed with us, and upon the understanding that the management of OPIL and
its other advisors are not aware of any relevant information relating to OPIL and Resulting Company that has
been omitted or that remains undisclosed to us that would make the Information or data examined by,

pravided to, reviewed by or discussed with us Inaccurate or misleading In any respect or that would
otherwise be relevant in arriving at our Opinion.

The terms of engagement were such that for arriving at the Opinion we were entitled to rety upon the
information provided by the Companies and their other advisors without detailed enguiry. Our work does not
constitute an audit, due diligence or certification of the historical or projected financial statements insluding
the working results of the Companies or their businesses referred to in this Opinion. Accordingly, we are
unablé to and do not express an opinion on the accuracy of any financial infarmation referred to in this
report. We assume no responsibility whatsoever for any errors in the information furnished by the
Comparies and/or their other advisors and their Impact on the present exercise.

We have refied upon and have not independently verified or validated, nor do we express any opinion on, the
financial, market, technical or operating projections and other information or data provided to us, or the
management’s views on the future businesses, operations and prospects or any underlying assumptians with
respect thereto. We have not assumed any obligation to conduct, nor have we conducted any physical
inspection or title verification of the facilitiesfassets and liabllities of the Companies and we neither express
any opinion with respect thereto nor accept any responsibility therefore.

We have not made any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities of the Companies or any
of their subsidiaries, nor have we been furnished with any such appraisals. We have not conducted or
prepared a model for any asset valuation or provided an analysis of due diligence or appraisal of the assets
and lisbilities of the Coampanies and have wholly relied on information provided by the Companies in that
regard. No consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyond th loans
disclosed in the accounts,

Neither IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited nor its affilistes, partners, directors, shareholders,
managers, employees or agents of any of them, makes any representation or warranty, express or impiied, as
to the Information and documents provided to us, based on which this Opinion has been issued. In no
circumstances however, will |DBI Capital or |ts affiliates, partners, directors, shareholders, managers,
employees or agents of any of them accept any responsibility or liability including any pecuniary or financial
lizbility to any third party and in the unforeseen event of any such responsibility/liabllity being imposed on
IDBI Capital or its associates/affillates, directors or employees by any third party, OPIL shall indemnify them
in accordance with the Engagement Letter dated October 07, 2016.

TL‘MM Paged of 6
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We are not legal, taxation or actuarial advisors and accordingly, our Opinion should not be constried as
certifying the compliance with the provisions of any law including company or taxation laws or any legal,
regulatery including all SEBI regulations, accounting or taxation implications or issues, We understand that
the Company would obtain such advice as deemed necessary from gualified professionals,

We do not express any opinion as to the price at which shares of the Demerged Company and/or the
Resulting Company may trade at any time, including subsequent to the date of this Opinion. In rendering our
DOpinion, we have assumed, that the Scheme will be implemented on the terms described therein, without
any waiver or modification of any material terms or conditions, and that in the course of obtaining the
necessary Regulatory or third party approvals for the Scheme, no delay, limitation, restriction or condition
will be imposed that would have an adverse effect on the Demerged Company and / or its subsidiaries,
Resulting Company and / or its subsidiaries and their respective shareholders,

We have undertaken no independent analysis of any potential or actual litigation, regulatory action, possible
unasserted claims, or other contingent liabilities to which the Company s or may be a party or are or nay be
a subject, or of any government Investigation of any possible unasserted claims or other contingent licbilities
te which the Companies are or may be a party or are or may be a subject. No investigation as to the
Companies’ claim to title of assets has bean made for the purpose of this exercise and the Companie.’ claim
to such rights has been assumed to be valid, We have not evaluated the solvency or falr value of the
Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company under either the laws of India or other laws relzting to
bankruptcy, Insolhency or similar matters.

Our Opinion s necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as they current’y exist
and on the Informatian made available to us as of the date thereof. We assume no responsibllity for updating
or revising our Gpinlon based on circumstances or events occurring after the date hereof. Dur Opinion s
specific to the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company Into the
Resulting Company as contemplated in the draft Scheme provided to us and s not valid for any other
purpose. In arriving at our Opinion, we were not authorized to salicit, and did not solicit, Interest from any
party with respect to the acquisition, business combination er other extraordinary transaction involving the
Company or any of their assets, nor did we negotiate with any party in this regard. Our Qpinlon Is not
intended to and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder as to how such holder should
vote or act In connéction with the Scheme or any matter related thereto,

Our Opinion also does not address any matterss other than expressly stated herein, including but not imited
to matters such as corporate governance matters, shareholder rights or any other equitable conside:ations,
We were not requested 1o, and we did not, participate In the negotiation of the terms of the Arrang zment,
its feasibliity or otherwise and we did not provide any advice or services in connaction with the Arran-2ment
other than the delivery of this Opinion. We express no view or opinion as to any such matters. V'e also
express no view as to, and our Opinion does not address, the fairness (financial or otherwise) of the rmount
or nature or any other aspect of any compansation to any officers, directors or employees to any pz-ties of
the Arrangement, or any class of such persons, relative to the Share Entitlement Ratio. We express he-ein no

view or oplnion as to any terms or other aspects of the Scheme of Arrangement (other than the Share
Entitlement Ratlo to the extent expressly stated hergin).
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IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd will receive a fee in connection with the delivery of this Dpinion. The fee for
pur services is not contingent upon the nature of Opinion provided to OPIL. The fee for our services s not
tontingent upon the results of the proposed Arrangement. In addition, OPIL has agreed to reimburse certain
of our expenses and to indemnify us against liabilities arising out of our engagement, This Opinlon is subject
to the laws of India. We and/or our affiliates in the past may have provided, and may currently or in the
future provide, investment banking, commercial banking and other financial services to the Companies and
their affiliates unrelated to the proposed Arrangement. We may have received or in the future may receive
compensation for the rendering of the afarementioned services. In the ordinary course of our businesses, we
and our affiliates may invest, make or hold long or short positians, finance positions or trade or otherwise
effect transactions In debt, equity or other securities or financial Instruments (including derivatives, bank
loans or other obligations) of OPIL and/er Resulting Company and/or their respective affiliates, holding
companies-and group companies.

In no circumstances shall the liability of IDBI Capital Markets B Securities Limited, its directors or em* loyees
related to the service provided in connection with this opinion, exceed the amount paid to D8I Capital as

fees for this Opinion,
Distribution of this Opinion

it Is understood that this Dpinian is for the benefit and use of the Board of Directors of OPIL (In its capacity as
such) in connection with and for the purposes of its evaluation of the proposed Arrangement and s not
rendered to or for the benefit of, and shail not confer rights or remedies upon, any person other than the
Board of Directars of OPIL. This Opinion may not be disclosed, referred to, or communicated (In whole or in
part) to any third party, nor shall any public reference to us be made, for any purpose whatsoever except i
with our prior written consent in each instance; and (i) as required to be disclosed by OPIL pursuant to the
listing agreements between OPIL and the stock exchanges and the SEBI Circulars (the "Purpose”).

It is understood that this Opinion is salely for the Purpase, and should not be relied on by anybody to whom
this Opinion is not addressad. If this Opinion Is used by any person other than to whom this Opinion is
addressed, or gther than for the Purpose, then we will mot be liable for any consequences thereof. Nelther
this Opinion nor its cantents may be referred to quoted to/by any third party, in any registration statzment,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or any other agreement ar doc ments
given to third parties. The receipt of this Opinion by any person is not to be taken as constituting the g ving of
Investment opinion by us ta any such person, not to constitute such person our client.

o,
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DCS/AMAL/SD/R3I7/735/2016-17 March 15,2017

The Company Secretary

Orient Paper and Industries Ltd,
Unit 8, Plot No 7 Bholnagar,
Bhubaneswar, Orissa- 751012

Sir,

We are in receipt of Dralft Scheme of Arrangement between Orient Paper and Industries Ltd with Orfent Electric Ltd and
their respective shareholders and creditors fled as required under SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated

November 30, 2015; SEBI vide its letter dated March 14, 2017, has Inter alia given the fallowing comment(s) on the draft
scheme of arrangement:

* "Company is advised to Inclode the fact that Gauri Rasgotra, was also a Director in VISA Steel Lid.
and her name featured in the list of RBI Wilful Defaulters. She has resigned on July 27, 2016."

« "Company shall ensure that additional information, If any, submitted by the company, alter filing

the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter Is displayed on the
websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges.”

= "Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars."

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company Is hereby advised:

Ta pravide additional information, if any, (as stated above) alang with various documents to the Exchange

for further dissemination on Exchange wehsite,

= To ensure that additional informatinn, If any, {as stated aforesaid) slong with various documents are
disseminated on their {company) website,

»  Toduly camply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we heteby advise that we have no sdverse shservations with limited reference to those marers

having a hearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to
enabie the company to fila the scheme with Hon'ble High Court.

Further, pursusnt to the above SEBL elreulars, upon sanction of the Scheme by the Hon'ble High Court, the listed company
shall submit to the stack exchange the following:

»  Copy ofthe High Court approved Scheme;
»  Resultof votlng by shareholders for approving the Schame;

+  Statement expiaining changes, any, and reasons for such chamges carried out in the Approved Scheme vis-4-vis
the Draft Scheme;

Capy of the observation letter issued by all the Stock Exchanges where Company I8 listed.

Status of compllance with the Observation Letter/s of the stock exchanges:

The application seeking exemption from Rule 19(2)(k) of SCRH, 1957, wherever applicable; and
Complaints Report as per Anmeviire il of this Circular,

Any other document/disclosure as informed by the Exchange.

SE&PR3SE "
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The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw it 'No adverse observation' at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / Incorrect / misleading / false 6r for any contravention
of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Guidelines/Regulations issued by
statutory authorities,

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any other
Tequirements.

Yours faithfully,

2 Yy

(- Manager

SEP@3SE P
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NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE NIFT
OF INDIA LIMITED

tepch aF the nation

Ref: NSE/LIST/10412 March 15, 2017

The Company Secretary

Orient Paper & [ndustries Limited
Birla Building, 13" Floor

9/1 R N Mukherjee Road

Kolkata = 700 00|

Kind Attn.; Mr, Ram Prasad Dutta

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Orient Paper &
Industries Limited and Orient Electric Limited

We are in receipt of the draft scheme of arrangement between Orient Paper & Industries
Limited and Orient Electric Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under
sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013, filed by Orient Paper & Industries Limited
vide letter on December 23, 2016,

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/105768 submitted to SEBI and pursuant 1o
SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI has vide letter
dated March 17, 2017, has given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the
Company, after filing the scheme with the stock exchange, from the receipt of this letter
is displayed on the website of the listed company.

b. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars.

¢. The Company is advised to include the fact that Gauri Rasgotra, was also a director in
VISA Steel Limited and her name featured in the list of RBT Wilful Defaulters. She has
resigned on July 27, 2016,

Based on the drafi scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including
undertaking given in terms of regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we hereby
convey our “No-objection™ in terms of regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, so as
to enable the Company o file the draft scheme with the Hon'ble High Court,

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found 1o be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange. Listing Regulations,
Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter" shall be six months from March 15, 2017, within
which the scheme shall be submitted to the Honble High Court. Further pursuant to the above

SEBI circulars upon sanction of the Scheme by the Hon'ble High Court, you shall submit to
NSE the following:

Pegd. Office: fxchange Plazs, Plor Ne.C/Y, G-Block Bandra-Kurts Comples, Bandta [E], Mumbal 400 051, Indis
CIN: UG7120MH1992PLE0GSTEY Tel «91 22 265082395/36, 6558346, 26508450/ J6500450 Web wte e bEndia com
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Continuation Sheet

Copy of Scheme as approved by the High Court;

Result of voting by shareholders for approving the Scheme;

¢. Statement explaining changes, if any, and reasons for such changes carried out in the
Approved Scheme vis-a-vis the Draft Scheme

d. Status of compliance with the Observation Letter/s of the stock exchanges

e. The application seeking exemption from Rule 19{2)(b) of SCRR, 1957, wherever
applicable; and

f. Complaints Report as per Annexure [l of SEBI Circular No, CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015

dated November 30, 2015.

e

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Divya Poojari
Manager

P.S. Ehn:l-:isst for all the Furthr:r ISSI.IES is avm!ahle on webslte ut' the exchange at the following

7 Tius Ciocoennnd s Cyjemty Gagnea

Die W Tt 12 2077 1902 40 GWT 953
Regd. Office: Exchaige Maza, Plok No. £/, G Block, Bandra-Xurls (:m-@ N s E E]m 081 india
CIN: UE7120MMISYZPLCOESTED Tel: #91 27 J6598235/36, 26508346, 26598459/ 26598458 Web sits wanw eIl Lo
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Complaints Report: ORIENT PAPER & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

FAPER

Part &
8r. Particulars Number |
Na.
1. | Number of comptlaints recaived directly a
2 Mumber of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange 0
3. | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) 0
4. | Number of complaints resolved 0
5. Number of complaints pending o
Part B
| Sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status ]
Ne. {Resolved/Pending)
1. Mot applicabla
2. | Mot spplicable
2 Mot applicable

For Qriant Pap Industries Limiied

P

Company Secretary
Placa: Kalkata

Orient Paper and Industries Limited

Birla Buliding 13th 1, 9/1 BN Mukherjoe Road, Kolkats 300001, India #9831 033 30573700 Email:

InfoBorientpz perindis.com

Regleterad Office: Unlt VIIL, Piot Mo 7, Bhoinegar, Bhubsrzshwar 751012, Indls wivw.crlentpaperindia.com tite

LI O RIEEEPOH00NL)
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January 25, 2017

Complaints Report; ORIENT PAPER & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Pari A
Sr. Particulars Number
No,
Y. Number of complaints received directly Y
2 Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange 1]
3. | Total Number of complaintsicomments recaived (1+2) 0
4. | Number of complaints resolved ]
5. Number of complaints pending 0 |
PartB
Sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. {Resolved/Pending)
1., Mot applicable
2, Mot applicable

A Mot applicable

For Orient Paper & |ndustries Limited

Company Secrstary

Placa:; Kolkksta

Crient Faper and industries Limited

Birla Buliding 13th 1, 5/1 AN Mukherjee Road, Kolksts 700001, tndin  +51 033 20573700 Emiak:
infa@arientpaperinds.com

fegtrared Office: Unit VI, Plat No 7, Rhoinegar, Bralbaneshwer 791002, (ndl wwiworlentpeperindie.com Gu.
L1010 S36RLO0001LY
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1.3.

i

BACKGROUND

The proposed scheme of arrangement between Orient Paper & Industries Limited (“Company™ or
“Demerged Company") and Orient Electric Limited (“Resulting Company™) and their respective
shareholders and creditors (“Scheme™) was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company
(“Board™) vide resolution dated |7 October 2016. Subsequent to the said date, provisions of Sections
230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, governing amalgamation of companies have
become operative with effect from 15 December 2016. Provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 requires the directors to adopt a report explaining the effect of the arrangement
on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel (“KMPs"), promoters and non-promoter
sharcholders of the Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio and the same is

required to be circulated as part of the notice to the meeting held for the purpose of approving the
Scheme.

This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of Section
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were placed before the Board
1.3.1, Draft Scheme duly initialled by the Managing Director for the purpose of identification;

1.3.2. Valuation Report dated 17 October 2016 of M/s NDA & Associates, Independent Chartered
Accountants (“Valuer”™) describing the methodology adopted by them in arriving at the share
entitlement ratio (“Valoation Report™);

1.3.3. Fairness Opinion dated 17 October 2016 of [DBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited, &

Category | Merchant Banker, providing the faimess opinion on the Valuation Report of the
Valuer: and

1.3.4.Report of the Audit Committee of the Board dated 17 October 2016,

VALUATION REPORT
Valuer has recommended the following share entitlement ratio for the Scheme:

I (One) equity share of Re. 1/~ each of the Resulting Compeny as fully paid up for every ] (One)

equity share of Re. 1/- each fully paid up to the members lo the members af the Demerged Company
as on the Record Date.

The aforesaid share entitlement ratio has been confirmed in the Faimess Opinion,
Orient Paper and Industries Limited

Birla Building 13th i, 9/1 AN Mukherjee Road, Kolkata Y00001, India +91 033 30573700 Email: info@arientpaperindia.com
Registerad Qffice: Unit Vill, Plot Na 7, Bholnagar, Bhubaneshwar 751012 india www.orientpaperindla.com cm
2101 10R1SIEPLCOG0T17
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PAPER

2.3. No special valuation difficulties were reported

3. Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter) of the Company

Both the promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the Company will receive shares in the
Resulting Company in accordance with Clause 8.1 of the Scheme

4. [Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Company

There is no impact of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Company. Further none of the KMPs have any
interest in the Scheme except 1o the extent of the equity shares held by them, if any in the Company

For and on behalf of the Board
Orient Paper & Industries Limited

Sd/f-

Manohar Lal Pachisia
Managing Director
DIN: 00065431

Place; New Delhi
Date : 16% May 2017

Qrient Paper and Industries Limited
Birla Bullding 13th 1i, 3/ RN Mukherjee Road, Kolkata 700001, Indie +91 033 30573700 Emall; info@arie ntpaperindis.com

Registerad Office: Unit VIIl. Plot No 7, Bhioinagar, Bhubanashwar 751012, Indis www.orientpapar ndia.com Cin:
L2101 10RI9I6PLOD0OTLT



ORIENT ELECTRIC LIMITED
9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001

i.2.

1.3.

2,

21,

232,

2.3.

BACKGROUND

p oo I The proposed scheme of arrangement between Orient Paper & Industries Limited
(“Demerged Company”) and Orient Electric Limited {"Company” or “Resulting Company”| and their
respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme®) was approved by the Board of Directors of tha
Company (“Board") vide resolution dated 17 October 2015. Subsequent to the said date, provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alla, governing amalgamation of companies
have become operative with effect from 15 December 2016. Provisions of Section 232{2){c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 requires the directors to adopt a report explaining the effect of the arrangement
on each class of shareholders, key managerial persannel ("KMPs”), promaoters and non-promoter
shareholders of the Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio and the same jc

required to be circulated as part of the notice to the meeting held for the purpose of approving the
Scheme,

This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of Section
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were placed before the Board

1.3.1. Draft Scheme duly initialled by the Director for the purpose of identification;

1.3.2. Valuation Report dated 17 October 2016 of M/s NDA & Asspciates, Independent Chartered
Accountants ("Valuer”) describing the methodology adopted by them in arriving at the share

entitiement ratio ("Valuation Report”);

VALUATION REPORT
Valuer has recommended the following share antitlement ratio for the Scheme:

1 {One] equity share of Re. 1/- each of the Resulting Company as fully poid up for every 1 (One) equity
shore of Re. 1/~ each fully paid up to the members to the members of the Demerged Company as on
the Record Date,

The aforesaid share entitlement ratio has been confirmed in the Fairness Opinion,

Neo special valuation difficulties were reported

Regd, Office: UNIT-VIII, PLOT NO.7
BHOINAGAR, BHUBANESWAR-751012(Odisha) Phone No, 0674- 2396030/2396364
CIN No. U311000R2016PLC025892
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ORIENT ELECTRIC LIMITED
9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kalkata-700001

3. Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders {promoter and non-promoter) of the Company

The existing shareholding of the Company will be cancelled in terms of Clause 15 of the Scheme.

4, Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Company

There |s no impact of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Company. Further none of the KMPs have any
interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity shares held by them, if any In the Company

For and an behalf of the Board
Orient Electric Limited

Sd/-

Pradeep Kumar Sonthalia
Director

DIN: 00065464

Place: Kolkata
Date ; 12" May 2017

Regd. Office: UNET-VIIL, PLOT NO.7
BHOINAGAR, BHUBANESWAR-751012(Odisha) Phone No. 0674- 2396030/2396364
CIN No. U311000R2016PLC025892
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Review Report to
The Board of Directors
Orient Paper & Industries Limited

1.

We have reviewed the accompanying statemert of unaudited financial results of Orient
Paper & Industries Limited (the Company’) for the guarter and nine months ended
December 31, 2016 (the “Statement’). This Statement is the responsibility of the
Company's management and has been approved by the Board of Directors. Our
responsibility is to ssue a report on the Statement based on our review.

We conducted our review In accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard reguires that
we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as {o whether the Statement
is free of matenal misstatement. A review is limited primarily to Inquiries of company
personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion,

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attertion that causes us
to believe that the accompanying Statement of unaudited financial results prepared in
accardance with applicable accounting standards and other recognised accounting
practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material
misstatement.

Without gualifying our conclusion, we draw attention {o Note 2 1o the accompanying
Statement regarding remuneration paid to Managing Director during the years ended
March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2016 which has exceeded the fimit prescribed under
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, by Rs.178.18 lacs and
Rs. 177.70 lacs respectively. As Informed to us, the Company has filed application / Is In
the process of making further representation o the Central Government for the walver of

above excess remuneration and pending receipt of the approval, no adjustments to
financial results have been made.

For 5.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP

istration number: 301003E/E300005
nis

per Sanjay Kumar Agarwal
Partner V)

Membership No. 060352 \'
o e
Flace: New Deihi .

Date: January 20, 2017 _—
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Particulars Quarter Ended e Monthn Eoded | Yaat Ended

3L
N, 31122018 | 30.09.2016 | 31422015 | 39-12-2016 | 31-12-2015 | 31.03.2016
[ | { Unsudited | | (Unevsited) | |Unudited| | {Unsudited ] | (husited)
1 |Incoma from operations
Groas saiesfincoma fram opsrations 40,031.74 | 4200067 | 4086053 | 125661.09 | 12453465 | 1929717 32
Less - scise duty 279871 | 319041 | 254548 | 947476 | B8E8S5H | 14,88141
(a) Net salesfincome frum operations 37,233.03 | 3971656 | 38,04507 | 116,186.33 | 11588507 | 17823599
jOther operating incoms 924,53 838.74 B5659 | 2.563.00 | 288550 3,799.81
Total income fram operations {nel) 38,157.56 | 4055630 | 38.801.66 | 118,749.33 | 11835057 | 182 035.54
2

ATATT.B4 2ETT 48 | 3E.28IET | 115,642.23 | 119,206.03 17T6,520.78
(3] ncresse (<) | decresss (+) nstock in trade and works
in-progress

(7,783.33) 408.85 (8.038.57) (7.477.83) (6,366.95) S6T.64
&) Purchases of iraded goods TAz24.1 78581 718744 19,853.18 18,323.99 29,183.81
(£} Consumption of raw matarisls 19,793.68 15,57T8.26 20,051,868 52,253 .43 5438502 TEA20.01
(d) Consumpticn of slores , chemicals & spares 1. THE.4T 1.845.80 1,853,755 4, B56.81 5.400.28 T128.67
I8} Powar & fusl 252232 | 275021 | ZETRAT TATHAE 819873 10,898.18
{f) Employees benafits sxpansss 5,563.00 | 512382 | 482383 | 1588100 | 1288777 18,288 73

238237 1,680.09 243364 8,555.33 B.88550 0.818.08
1,087.20 1.102.59 111387 3,588.27 3.345.74 4.431.00
486252 4 51065 4, 181.25 14,072.79 14,085 06 19, 7B5.72

&78.72 GTBB2 618.15 2,107.10 {BE5 48} 651478

75584 40147 0807 1,384.97 864.85 1.738.64
s l"“'""' fLa) from Bafrs finance cos & ta {44 143556 | 137088 | B2622 | 240127 10848 | 728342
& |Finance costs 101283 | 101291 1,307.63 3,235.58 3,805.34 5,118.83
T lhmumm ordinary sctivities bators tax (5-8) 422,63 367.08 [481.41) 25568 | (3.595.85) 213458
B |Tax expanses | (credif) _ 134.24 80.70 | (1,124.7@) 342 {1,124.78) 32 51
¥ [ e S 8839 Z76.38 643.35 148 | (257T1.00) 210208
10 W equity whare capital (Face value par share : 2,048.T8 204a70 2,048.79 2,048.70 2.048.78 2048.79
" m-u];u axcluding revalution ressrve 38,772.30
12 |Earning par shara (EPS) (facs valus of Re.1/- sach)

Basic & Dilutsd ("not annuailsed) 0.94 4 013 031 1 0.1 1 {1.285)" 1.03

Motes -

1 Limited review of the abcve quarterly results has been carried out by tha stetulony ausitons of the Company.

2 mmumnmﬂmcmmnmmmummmsmmﬂ.ﬂnummnulﬂ
m‘.n-dmmmmmnmuummmmumwmmmmmimhmam
mmmmhhmhﬂmnﬁmumﬂhm#m“mmhmmw Diroctor of tha Company.

This has been referred to by the sudiiors in their limited review report for ths quarter ended 3181 Decamber 2018 and was also referred in ihe
review report for the quartsr ended 30th June. 2016 snd 301h Septermber, 2016 as a matier of emphasis.

3 Tax expanses include deterred tax and is ofter adjusting MAT eredit artiilement.

4 There were no exceplional and adrsordinary ems during the quartsr | niee months ended Y1at December, 2016,
5 Previous peried | year figures have been regrouped | rearranged wharsver necessary,

L mmmmanmmm.nuhhmunmﬂhhhﬂdﬂmmﬂmcmwmmmmml

hald oA January 20, 2017,




'.I'TruhudMﬂthuﬂﬂummﬂm-m“ﬂnmnmmmmma
going toncem besis to & newly formes wholly ownad subsidiary namely “Orant Elsciric Limited™ through & tchame of srangement wef
March 31 mf.m}ﬂhnhiﬁqnmyum

The above resusts incluces profit/ (loss) from dissantineing oparstions i, Consummr siecing busingss of the Campany which i to be demsrged
waf, Murch 01 2017 #w staled above and the dataile wharea! sr 58 e

B Particufsrw Quartar Ended Mine Months Ended | Yasr Ended |

e 3123016 | 30.09.3016 | 1-12-2015 | 3122018 | 31-92-2015 | 31.00.2016
{Unsudied ) | | Unausied ) | | Unsudiisd | | | Unsudtisd ) | | Unsusssd | | A et |

1 |4ncome frem eperations (net) 3rzsen | 2esavac | asTerte | mzzevd pio73E0 | 12sevisd

2 |Profit { (Loss} from ordinary activities before tex [#00.27) 17668 {119.84) #7203 (L LFRT] LTyt

3 |Tax Expenses inchuding deferred tax | credlt | icharge [138.53) 8114 1.5 338,40 {a50.34) 1aIT08

F mmmrqmpmmmmmn:{b {e174) 148 {Taad) EinE (881,08 22857

Segment wise Rovenus, Remulls, Assets and Lisbilitas

& Hine Months Ended = |
Na. Feryisulare 31122016 | 30.09.2018 | 31-12.3015 | 31-12-2016 | 31122015 | 3103301
{ Unawdited | | | Unsudied | | | Unsdiied | | | Unowolbsd | | { Dnaditee |
1 |Segmant revenus :
) Papar & Board 1329247 | 1378363 | 1300150 | ass7.20 36,844 5T 5185218
b} Edictrics! Gomsumer Durables 24,TI5ER | MWEILI0 | 2ET7EIT0 | &228T.5% 8107380 | 12081184
&) Othare 20874 ga167 126.45 BA4BO | 43220 571.55
Totd 3815758 | 4055850 | SnomEE | 1574033 | 11835057 | 1E2 03554
Lasi ; Inter segment revanus - = - - - =
Wit eslss/incoma from spersiisns 38.157.56 | 4055830 | 360168 | 19074033 | 11635057 | 182.035.54
2 |Segmant Resubs ; (Profit («VLoss() bafore
intkrast & txx fram esch segmant) -
&) Paper & Board - Amial 1,237.51 85554 TEOEY 1.278.71 16653 1,243 67
» Brajrajnagar 7068 (41.82) (53,085 297.72 [288.42) {347.70)
1,617.30 B24.72 B57.58 1,576,432 {99.58) BE5.97
b} Electrical Conaumet Durabiss 6385 BE2.A0 6TE 2.584.22 880 20 B.TE2.43
=] Others 41.23 a53r 447 148.21 18.08 4984
J,.'% 155278 1.108.7T 4,256.95 i 754,70 770804
|i} Finance costs 101283 101291 1.307.83 323558 300504 511883
(i} Ofher un-silocable expenditum
netof un-sdlocabls incoms Z86.52 152.80 26255 785.88 BET.21 B4, 6
Profis | Haform Tax 422,63 28708 4a141) 255.68 ﬁ,mug_ 2,154 59
3 Segrmmrnd Asseiy
&) Paper & Bawrd STMLAE | 5480830 | E22SROT | BRYiZiE 5205997 54,180.78
6} Exectrical Consurner Durskiss 6253681 | 5357188 | 6030445 | 6233681 £0,304.45 £%,108.02
cj Othars 450.37 42280 35342 | 45977 35142 35004
Tota: Sagment Assets 1 36 | 10885315 111291784 | 120,508.38 | 11269784 | 125547 84
i Begment Lishilities :
a) Paper L Board 13.588.21 1345447 1254211 1398021 Y2.642.11 12,281 4B
b Eletries] Cansumsr Gurablag 2637879 | 1813804 | ZSE1LTe | mmaTse 25 411,79 271351
£} Others 245,13 200.18 173,56 245.15 17358 145,53 |
| Totai Segrmont Lisbilities 4081015 | 3176286 | 3883746 | 4061048 | 3850748 | 3614052
" Shown sepoIEty SINCE N U is non - perasanml PR
ihe I
NEW DELHI For Orient PHPET & lm‘luﬂtm'a MMWHIMLTH.
Jarnary 20, 2097
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Orient Electric Limited

We have audited the accompanying interim financial statements of Orient Electric Limited ("the
Company”), which comprise the interim Balance Sheel as at December 31, 2018, and the
interim Statement of Profit and Loss and interim Cash Flow Statement for the period then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the interim Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these interim financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standard)
Amendment Rules 2016. The Board of Directors is also responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent, and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intemal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the interim financial statemeants that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility on the interim financial statements

Cur responsibility is to express an cpinion on these interim financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the interim financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Interim financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
interim financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial contral relevant to the Company's preparation of the
interim financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit proceduras
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion an
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the effectivenass of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the

i



S.R. Batusoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the interim financial statements. We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained Is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion en the interim financial
statements,

Ogpinion

In our opinion and to the best of aur infarmation and according to the explanations given to us,
the accompanying interim financial statements give a true and fair view In accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS) 25 specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Acecounting Standard) Amendment Rules
20186:

(@) In the case of the interim Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at
December 31, 2018,

(b) in the case of the interim Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the period ended
on that date, and

{c) inthe case of the interim Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the period ended
on that date.

Other matters - restriction of use

The accompanying interim financial statements have been prepared, solely for the purpose of
onward submission to the concemed authorities for approval of scheme of arrangement as
moare fully described in Note 12 of accompanying interim financial statements. Accordingly, this
report should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior
written consent,

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reglstration Number: 301003E/E300005

o

per Sanjay Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership Number: 060352
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: January 27, 2017

T



Orient Electric limited.
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2016

As at
Notes 31-Dec-16
T
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 500,000
Reserves gnd surpius 4 {5,852 108}
(5,452,108)
Current liabilities
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -] -
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 5 25,000
Other Current liabllities 5 5,928,362
5,953%
TOTAL
!'- i, T '\l'.'...é
Current assats
Cash and bank balances 7 489,885
Other current assets B 1,371
TOTAL SOT.258
Summary of &nfﬁmnt aﬁmun‘hﬁ policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even dale
For 5. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration Mo.: 301003E/E300005
CHART O ACCOUNTANTS
For and on bahalfl of the board
of directors

Pl'-l' hnjly Kumar rwal

Hnnﬂm‘uhlp No, 060352

Place: Kolkata
Cated : 2Tth January 2017

i
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Orient Electric limited.

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period from 10th October 20186 to 31st

December 2016
Notes As at
T
Incame _ =
Interest on bank deposits 1.371
Total Incoma 1371
Preliminary expenses written off a80,687
Professional & Consultancy expenses 5867675
Bank charges 115
Payment to Auditors
Az Auditors
= Audil Fees 25,000
Total Expenses 5953477
Loss before tax for the period (5.952,108)
Tax expense
Current tax =
Total tax expense -
Loss for the period (5,952,108
_

Earnings per equity shara [nominal value of share Rs. 1/]
Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 8 11.90
Summag of significant aconunﬂﬂg policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of tha finandal statements.
As per our report of even date
ForS. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration No.: 301003E/£300005
c ED ACCOUNTANTS

pe— For and on behalf of the board

A0l §5 of ai rs
i el \ .
per Sanjay Kumar Agarwal '.I',_ i | ) V\f/
Partner A
Membership No. 060352 R * =
I'- &L - 4 ""'--"

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 27th January 2017



Orient Electric limited.

Cash Flow Statement for the period from 10th October 2016 to
31st December 2016

T
Peariod fram
10th October 20186 to

31st December 2016

{A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ;

loss befora Tax {5,852,108)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes :
Increase in Trade payable and Other llabifities 5,953,382
Incresse n Other assels (1,371
Net CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS: ﬁﬁE

{B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Fixed deposit mads 450,000
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 450,000
(C} CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
issue of Equity Shares 500.000
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 500,000
NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A-B+C) 49 885
* Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 49 BBS

" Represents Cash and Bank Balances as Indicated in Note 7 and excludes Rs. 450000 being fixed deposils
for maturity of more than 3 months,

As par our report of aven date
For 5. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Reglstration Mo.: 301003E/E300005

CHAR ACCOUNTANTS For and on bahall of the board
_|"l .::;' L ."_ "J " l‘\ \
G ,

Q L

afi 1 . o
e N W
per Sanjay Kumar Agarwal Nl Sy

Partner el .
Membership No. 060352 T -
Place: Kolkats

Dated : 27th January 2017

Th



Orlent Electric limited,
Notes to financlai statemants for the period from 10th October 2016 to 31st December 2016

1. BACKGROUND

Orent Electne Lid. is o subsidisry of Orent Papar & indusiries Limied, Tre Company has been mcorpomisd on 10in Oclobesr 2018, The
Company fak nof started any busiess acihity, Howevar, & schema of amangament has been approvad by (he Board of Drectos of (he Compary
subiect 1o oblaining recessany spproval 2s sisted in MNote 9 below.

Z. Basis of preparation

The financal elatements of the Company have besn prepared in scoordancs with genemly scoepisd accouniing principles in India (indian
GAAR), The Company has prepamd (hese financial stasemenzs 1o comiply in all matenal mspects with the Accounting Standards notifing uncer
Section 133 of e Companies Aci, 2011 read together with paragresi 7 of the Companies (Azcounia) Rules, 2014 and Companies [Acoounting
Standnrd) Amncimant Ruies 2018, The financial statermants heve been prepared on an scerusi basis and ynder the historicsl cos! convention.

21 Summary of significant accounting policies
(2} Use of estimates

The preparation of fnancial statements in conformily wilh ndan GAAP requines the managemant 1o make judgmanis, estimates and
assumptions ihat sffect the reported amounts of revenuss, expenses, ssceis and labiities and the disclosure of contingent Eabifties, a1 (he snd
of ihe reparfing pedod. Altheugh these extimisles are based on the menagemeni's best knowiedge of current evenis and actions, unoonainty
Bbout thase: sssumptons and estimates could resss in ihe oulcomes rquiving & mateis adjustmen 1o the carying amownts of esseis of
lahilities In fulires perods.

ib] Revanus Recogniiion
Interoat

intenset income @ recognized on & lme propodtion basis taking mo acsount the smount culstanding ard ihe applicable whirest rate.

{g] Income taxes

Tax sxpense comprises Cumen and defered lax. Curren! income-tax i Teasured Bt e smouni expecied 1o be mid t0 the tax autharties in
accordance with the income-tax Act, 1067 enscted In Indin and tax lows poevalling In the respective tex jurisdictions where the Company
operates. The inx rates and tax lews used 1o computs the smount &re those that am enacted o substantively snacled, af the mporiing date.
Curment inooma tax relaling i Bams recogriioed directly in equity is recognized In ety and nol in the setemest of profil and joss.

Deferred incoms taxes refect the impact of timing differences betwean tasabis iIncome and accounfing Incame eriginsting during the curnant
period ana reversal of timing diferences for ths sadier ppnods. Defemed tan s messured seing the tax rates ang the tax iows snocisd or
substantvaly anacted el the reporting date. Dafermad income tax relating to iame recognized dirsctly In squlty is recognizsd (n squily &nd not In
tive siatement of profil end losa.

Deferred lax fabdities are recogaized for all teabie Uming diffarences. Defarsd tax sssnts are recognized for ceductibie Uming dfferences anly
b the exctent il thene is masonable cerainty that suificieEnt futurs memiie income will be svafasie against which such deferred tax asseis can
be realized. in situstions where the Comgarny has unabsorbed depresiation or camy forwand tax iosses, sl defered iax assets are recogrizad
ary i ihera s virual caneinty supparied by comwineing evidence thet they can te realized sgainst futurs tresie profite.

At mach reporting date, the Company re-assessss unmcognized deferted tax sssats. || recognizes uvecognized defarred tax asset to the exdent
that it has beoome rassonably certain of vicually cartain, &5 the case rmay be, thal suficlen fubune axeble incoms will be avallable against which
suoh determed lax ssels can Do realized.




Orient Electric limited.
Notes to financial statements for the Elo_d from 10th October 2016 to 31st Decamber 20186

{d) Emmings Per Share

Basic saming pear share is calculated by dividing the et prof or Ioss for ths period effrituiable to enulty sharsholdes by e weghisd avarage
Fismbar of oully shares sulsiandng during the pariod.

For the purpose of calculating divied marming per share, tha net grofil of iess for the period astrioutstie to equity sharehoicers and the weighted
sverage numbers of shares outitanding during the period s adjusted fof th effects of & dilutive patential squity shares.

(8] Pralimingry Expanses
In sccordence with the requiramanis of Accounting Standard - 2. Frediminary expansas incufrsd In gonneciion with the formation of the
Company ame cherged off in tha periad such expensss are incurmsd

{fi Contlngent liabilites

A contingend fiatillty is & possitie cbiigatan that afsss fom past svents whise exisience will be confirmed By fhe docurmence o ROn-SCcufmERce
of ans or mare uncertzin e svents biyond the control of the compeny or & presant soligatian thal is not mcognized becauss it is not probabie
{hal an cutfiow of resources will be requined o seltie the chigation. A conlingent Eshility also arises in axdremely rare canes whera thare s a
fimbility thal cannot be necognized hacause if cannot ba messured reliably, The Company does fot recognize & contingant lability but dsciosss its
exisience in the financial stalements.

(g} Canh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash squivalents for the purposes of Cash Flow Sistemernt comorise cash sl bank and in hand &nd shor-ierm IAvestmants with an
original maturity of three monihs or less.




Orient Electric limited.

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the period from 10th October 2016 to 31st
Decamber 2016

3. Share capital
AL at
1-Dmc-18
v
Authorized shares
500000 Equity Shares of Rs1é sach 600,000
Izsued, subseribed and fully pald-up shares
500000 Equity shares of R/ sach fully paid 500,000
—— 1
{8} Reconcliiation of the shares outstanding st the beginning and at e and of the reparting perlod
shares
As st
¥-Dec-18
of shaies T
Al this beglrming of the parad - -
lespen duning the period S0, 000 500,000
Gutstanding at the end of the period oL 502,000

{a) Termal rights attached to equlty shares
Thee Campany has only ohe class of equity shanes having par waiue of Ra.1 per sharm Ench hoidar of soulty shares & enlited o
o yobe per shars,

hm-muwummp-ny.mmuwmwumumm-—udwm,
mmhhnﬁundlllnMMTMMMﬁuhmmﬂmbhnmﬂlﬂwmm by tha
shamshoidars.

(b} Shares heid by holding company

The sbowve 500,000 Equity Shenme of Rs. 1 aach are hald by its holiing Company nemely Orent Paper & Industries Lid

4. Reserves and surplus

An al
31-Dac-18
L1
Daficit In the Statemant of Profit and Loss
Lags fof the panod §5.%52 106)
Deficlt in the Statemant of Profit and Loss Eaim
Total ressrves and surplus — {5.952.108}
5. Other current liabilltles
As &l
I1.Doc-18
T
?I’.ﬁm
Tutas cutstanding does of micr enberprisss snd small srisrprsss -
Total cutssanding dues of crediions afher fhan micm enismosen and wmal enterprses 25,000
— E5000
Diher fabiities
Payabia 1o Qrdant Papar & industriss Limied, ihe Holding Camgany [Refer Nobe 11) 6,928,367
Total Othar curnent labilities _Hm

—



Orient Electric limited.

Notes to Financlal Statements as at and for the period from 10th Octobar 2016 to 31st
December 2016

8. Other curment assots

Ax at
114:::&
Irberael scerued or laad depodis 1,374
—_— AT
7. Cash and bank balances
An wt
3-Dhirc-18
T
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with benks:
- O current o SR ]
—0EE5
Oitver bank balance
— Dieposita wih remairing meturity for mone than 3 mondhe bt less tan 12 months ASD000
— ASo.boe
Total Cash wnd benk balonces u
B. Eamnings per share (EPS) - —
Tha feliowing refiects the profd and share deta usad |n the besic and diuled EPS
omaustions
An @t
3%.-Doc-18
L4
Net ProfitiLoss) wmgﬁgmmdm EE (5,892 108 04}
R m‘m
Weighted average numbar of squlty shares in calcutaling basle and  diluted EPS 00,000
Eamings per equily share [nominal value of share Rs 1]
Bagic & Diluted (Rs.) [11.80)

2 The Company's Bomrd of Direclors al s mesiing held on October 17, 2018 has approved & Compesiie Scheme of arrangarmsnt
betwean the Company snd Orienl Papar & industries Limdsd (OPIL] in eems of the prosisions of Section 391 10 354 and other

provisions of the Comparies Act, 1856 & Compenias Aci, 2013 o the extent eppicatie, for rensfer of consume* slecirc
business of OPE o the Campany in 8 going concam basia with affact from 1=t March 2017, subject io obiaining nacessary
Approvala.

10. Orieni Paper & |ndusiries Limiled, the halding company, hes incurred certsin Professional & Consuftafcy expense and olfer
miiscnliansos Sxpenses owands the incopornetion of the Company and schams of dema—rger & mated in Nots § sbove, which ars
Im e hewne by the Cemipany. in terms of the said acheme of amangsmant. The said oxparses are mimburseabie 1o the. holding
cormplrty and scoordingly, the same has Desn shown under the head ofher curmnt labifites.

11, Ag the Comparry has no! yet commanced eny businass activity, sagmeni meporting disclosures as per Accounting Standard -
17, are not applicabls snd hence not fumished

12, These Intedrm Anencial statarment for the perdod onded 31st Decarmber 2018 have besn prapaned for the purposs of crmuard
submission o thie concermed nulhoniies for approval of scheme of Errangemant Bs steisd | Note © above.



Orient Electric limited.

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for tha period from 10th October 2016 to 31st
December 2016

13, Related party disclosures

Mames of related parties and related party relationship

Related parfiss where cantrol exists

Heolding Company Qrignt Paper & Industries Limiled

“Related party transactions

Tha following tabie provides the tolsi amount of iransaciions thet have been entered into with relsted parties for iha relevant

a. Advances receivad L4
Period ended  Advances As at
recalved 31-Dec-2018
Holding Company
Orient Paper & Indusirias Limited 3-Dec-16 5,528,362 5,628,382

14, The Company has been incorporated on 10th Ociober 2018 and this s being the first financial ststemant of the Company
and hence previous parnod fgures have not bean given.

As per our report of even date

For 5. TLIBOL & CO. LLP Far and on benall of the

Firm tion Mo 301003E/E300005 board of directors

CHART AC INTANTS (\,# ‘{;\
F ‘\_ W

per Sanjay Ku i

Partner -y fo i .

Membership Mo, 060352 - - 2
e = Vi

Place. Kolkata
Dated : 27th January 2017

il



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMMPALY LAW TRIBUNAL

KOLKATA BENCH

Company Application No.160 of 2017

In the matter of:

The Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the matter of Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the Matter of:

Orient Paper & Industries Limited, having CIN L210110R1936PLC000117,
a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1913, having its registered office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar,
Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha

And
Orient Electric Limited, having CIN U311000R2016PLC025892, a

company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, having its registered office at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

..... Applicants.
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
FORM OF PROXY
I/We, , the undersigned Equity Shareholder/s of Orient Paper & Industries Limited, being the Applicant Company
no.l abovenameddo hereby appoint Mr./Ms. of and failing him/her
of as my/our proxy, to act for me/us at the meeting of

the Equity Shareholders of the Orient Paper & Industries Limited to be held at the registered office of Orient Paper & Industries
Limited at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha on Thursday, the 29th day of June, 2017 at 10 a.m.
for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the
Scheme of Arrangement between Orient Paper & Industries Limited andOrient Electric Limited and their respective shareholders
and creditors ( the “Scheme”) and at such meeting, and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof, to vote, for me/us and in my/

our name(s) (here, if “for’, insert ‘FOR’, if ‘against’, insert ‘AGAINST’, and in the latter case, strike out the

words below after ‘the Scheme’) the said arrangement embodied in the Scheme, either with or without modification(s)*, as my/our

proxy may approve.(*Strike out whatever is not applicable)

Dated this day of 2017. Signature




Name

Address

No. of shares held

(For Demat holding)

DP Id. Client Id.

(For Physical holding)

Folio No.

Signature of Shareholder(s): Sole holder/ First Holder

Signature of Proxy

Second holder

Third holder

Notes:

1.

The proxy must be deposited at the registered office of Orient Paper & Industries Limited at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar,
Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India, at least 48 (forty-eight) hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the
said meeting.

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

Please affix appropriate revenue stamp before putting signature.

In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

Proxy need not be a shareholder of Orient Paper & Industries Limited.

No person shall be appointed as a proxy who is a minor.

The proxy of a shareholder blind or incapable of writing would be accepted if such shareholder has attached his signature or
mark thereto in the presence of a witness who shall add to his signature his description and address: provided that all insertions
in the proxy are in the handwriting of the witness and such witness shall have certified at the foot of the proxy that all such
insertions have been made by him at the request and in the presence of the shareholder before he attached his signature or

mark.

The proxy of a shareholder who does not know English would be accepted if it is executed in the manner prescribed in point
no. 7 above and the witness certifies that it was explained to the shareholder in the language known to him, and gives the

shareholder’s name in English below the signature.
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ORIENT PAPER & INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Registered office:
Unit — VIIL, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha
Phone No.(0674) 2396930
CIN: L210110R1936PLC000117

Website: www.orientpaperindia.com
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
ATTENDANCE SLIP
PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

MEETING OF
THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
ON THURSDAY THE 29TH DAY OF JUNE 2017 AT 10A.M.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Orient Paper & Industries Limited, the Applicant
Company no.1, convened pursuant to the order dated 18th day of May 2017 of the NCLT at the registered office of Orient Paper
& Industries Limited at Unit — VIII, Plot No. 7, Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar — 751012, Odisha, India, on Thursday, the 29th day of
June 2017 at 10A.M.

Name and address of

Equity Shareholder

(IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Signature

Reg. Folio No.

Client ID

D.P.ID

No. of Shares
Name of the Proxy*

(IN BLOCK LETTERS):

Signature

*(To be filled in by the Proxy in case he/she attends instead of the shareholder)
Notes:

1. Equity Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by proxy or through authorised representative are requested to
complete and bring the Attendance slip with them and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

2. Equity Shareholders who come to attend the meeting are requested to bring their copy of the Scheme with them.

3. Equity Shareholders who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP ID for easy
identification of attendance at the meeting.

4. Equity Shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder whose name
stands first in the Register of Members of Orient Paper & Industries Limited in respect of such joint holding will be entitled
to vote.



ROUTE MAP OF VENUE

POWER HOUSE
SQUARE

DA V PUBLIC SCHOOL

SAILASR] FILLING

RA JB HAW AN
GOVERNOR’S HOUSE

STATION

-6

UNIT


hcl
Placed Image




